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          2                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Good

          3  afternoon. I think once they hear we're started then

          4  they'll -- they always test me. They think I'm not

          5  going to start on time.

          6                 I am Council Member Madeline

          7  Provenzano, Chair of the Committee on Housing and

          8  Buildings.

          9                 I would like to thank all of you for

         10  coming today for our first hearing on Intro. No.

         11  126.

         12                 This is a local law that would amend

         13  the Administrative Code of the City of New York in

         14  relation to building safety. It was introduced under

         15  my name at the request of the Mayor.

         16                 Since the collapse of the World Trade

         17  Center, many concerned individuals and organizations

         18  in the building design, construction and real estate

         19  community, have been engaged in research and

         20  discussions to upgrade building and fire prevention

         21  codes in many major municipalities, and particularly

         22  in New York City.

         23                 The World Trade Center Building Code

         24  Task Force was convened on March 19th, 2002, by the

         25  Department of Buildings. It was to review current
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          2  building design, construction, and operating

          3  requirements, and determine of modifications for

          4  extreme events were needed to ensure public safety

          5  in new and existing buildings.

          6                 In response to the September 11th,

          7  2001 terrorist attack and the subsequent collapse of

          8  the World Trade Center, the Department of Buildings

          9  established a task force to review the events and

         10  conditions that led to a failure of building

         11  operations.

         12                 In February 2003, the Task Force

         13  formerly announced 21 recommendations to the Mayor.

         14  The Mayor accepted the recommendations of the task

         15  force and then through the Department of Buildings

         16  identified 13 of the 21 recommendations for

         17  incorporation into the legislation, Intro. No. 126.

         18  That is presently before the Committee.

         19                 This is to enhance the safety of

         20  highrise office buildings after the events of

         21  September 11th.

         22                 According to the report released by

         23  the Task Force in February 2003, the Task force

         24  based its findings on currently available

         25  information, and was supportive of the concurrent
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          2  building and fire safety investigation that is being

          3  conducted by the National Institute of Standards and

          4  Technology under the authorization of Congress.

          5                 Personally, I am extremely supportive

          6  of the efforts by the Administration to improve

          7  building safety, whether it be at the design stage,

          8  the construction stage or during the course of

          9  occupancy, and I hope that any revisions to the

         10  City's Building Code and Fire Prevention Code will

         11  accomplish this goal.

         12                 I would also like to take this moment

         13  to applaud the Department of Buildings, our

         14  Commissioner, Patricia Lancaster, and all her staff,

         15  for the expedient manner in which we got to the

         16  point we're at today. I know all of the hard work,

         17  and lots of hard work by a lot of hard-working

         18  people.

         19                 So, today is the first hearing on

         20  this legislative item. The Committee expects to hear

         21  from a broad range of interests, including

         22  representatives of the Department of Buildings, the

         23  Fire Department, the real estate industry,

         24  architects, engineers, fire safety professionals,

         25  labor representatives, manufacturers, members of the
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          2  general public and I would like to add some folks

          3  from the Skyscraper Safety Committee, who I know

          4  personally and welcome here.

          5                 Remember that if you wish to testify

          6  you must sign in. We need one of these little papers

          7  from you. And our first witness today -- well, I do

          8  have a Committee here today. Okay, on my right,

          9  always and forever, James Oddo. On my left, Council

         10  Member Tony Avella, Council Member Leroy Comrie, and

         11  Council Member Joel Rivera.

         12                 Let's see, our first witness will be

         13  Patricia Lancaster, Commissioner of Buildings.

         14  Welcome.

         15                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER: Good

         16  afternoon, Chairperson Provenzano and members of the

         17  Committee on Housing and Buildings. My name is

         18  Patricia Lancaster and I'm the Commissioner of the

         19  City's Department of Buildings. I am joined today by

         20  Stephen Kramer, my Chief of Staff; Mark Topping,

         21  Deputy Commissioner for Administration and

         22  Technology; and fire Department Chief Patrick

         23  Savage.

         24                 Thank you for this opportunity to

         25  testify today in support of Intro. 126 concerning
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          2  the safety of highrise office buildings.

          3                 We firmly believe that Intro. 126

          4  constitutes an important step towards enhancing the

          5  safety of our highrise office buildings in light of

          6  the collapse of the World Trade Center structures.

          7                 Intro. 126 meets this goal without

          8  compromising the economic viability of major

          9  construction in this City. While our task may not be

         10  finished once this bill has passed, because once

         11  additional studies are completed and we have more

         12  information, more changes may come, nevertheless,

         13  Intro. 126 marks clear and major advances in

         14  building safety.

         15                 The attacks of September 11th and the

         16  subsequent collapse of the twin towers and 7 World

         17  Trade Center were unparalleled in this City's and

         18  this nation's history.

         19                 As a result, the Department concluded

         20  that it was imperative to review the New York City

         21  Building Code in light of these events and the

         22  proliferation of terrorist threats.

         23                 We need to ensure that our

         24  requirements, standards and practices in the design

         25  and construction of buildings provide the highest
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          2  level of safety, both for the occupants of tall

          3  buildings, and for their rescuers.

          4                 The current building code contains

          5  many provisions to ensure the integrity of

          6  structures, including protection from fire, safe

          7  evacuation, and the safe installation of mechanical

          8  equipment.

          9                 However, in our post September 11th

         10  world of unknown and elevated risks, we must strive

         11  for the safest reasonable standards without

         12  compromising our ability to live, work and build in

         13  this City.

         14                 Accordingly, Intro. 126 is not

         15  intended to specify specific risks, nor does it

         16  propose designing buildings to make them safe from

         17  the impact of aircraft.

         18                 Rather, the goal of this bill is to

         19  enhance public safety in the most practical manner

         20  feasible.

         21                 Although it is of no comfort to the

         22  families of the victims of the 9/11 tragedy, it

         23  should be noted that the overall performance of the

         24  World Trade Center towers and the buildings

         25  surrounding them demonstrated a significant ability
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          2  to protect the lives of its occupants during

          3  catastrophic and unseen events.

          4                 However, as with every major failure

          5  of a building or a structure in New York City, it is

          6  incumbent upon the Building Departments, Department

          7  of Buildings, to review the events and conditions

          8  leading to the failure and the associated standards

          9  and requirements for the construction and operation

         10  of buildings, to ensure that the lives of building

         11  occupants are protected to the maximum degree

         12  practicable.

         13                 In March of 2002, as Chairwoman

         14  Provenzano has said, the Department of Buildings

         15  convened the World Trade Center Building Code Task

         16  Force in order to address these concerns.

         17                 The Task Force consisted of experts

         18  from government, the real estate community, design

         19  and construction professions, and the real estate

         20  and building industries. It also received input from

         21  academia, special needs communities, 9/11 victims

         22  families and survivors.

         23                 Issues originating from a variety of

         24  sources were presented to Task Force's executive

         25  committee and five working groups were created.
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          2  Specifically, structural strength, emergency

          3  evacuation, mechanical systems, fire protection and

          4  Department of Buildings Operations.

          5                 The working groups formulated both

          6  general recommendations and specific proposals for

          7  Building Code changes where deemed appropriate.

          8                 After months of technical meeting and

          9  a review of literature and standards in other

         10  nations, the task force proposed 21 recommendations

         11  to enhance standards for public safety and highrise

         12  office buildings during emergency events.

         13                 Every attempt was made to ensure that

         14  all relevant stakeholders were involved in

         15  developing the Task Force's recommendations.

         16                 As a result, Intro. 126 reflects this

         17  Administration's philosophy, that the legislative

         18  process should be as open and transparent as

         19  possible. The bill before you today would implement

         20  13 of the task forces 21 recommendations.

         21                 Seven of the eight other

         22  recommendations did not require legislative action

         23  at this time. The remaining recommendation that New

         24  York City consider the adoption of a model building

         25  code is an effort that is currently underway.
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          2                 The proposals that form the substance

          3  of the bill may be categorized into three broad

          4  areas.

          5                 First, there are retroactive

          6  requirements, applicable to both new and existing

          7  highrise office buildings.

          8                 Second, certain construction

          9  materials and methods will be prohibited on all new

         10  work on highrises; and

         11                 Third, this bill establishes ne

         12  requirements as opposed to prohibitions that will

         13  applicable to all new work on highrises.

         14                 In the retroactive category, the bill

         15  establishes new requirement for existing highrise

         16  office buildings.

         17                 These are with regard to sprinklers,

         18  exit signage, exit markings and full evacuation

         19  drill plans.

         20                 Let's start with sprinklers. Although

         21  since 1984, newly constructed highrise office

         22  buildings must be fully sprinklered. Many older

         23  buildings remain unprotected by sprinklers.

         24                 In this post-9/11 era, owners,

         25  tenants and government have reached the consensus
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          2  that the cost of increased sprinkler protection is

          3  small, relative to the commensurate increase in

          4  public safety. This local law will require that all

          5  existing office buildings over 100 feet in height or

          6  greater that are not fully sprinklered will be fully

          7  sprinklered within 15 years.

          8                 Evidence before the task force

          9  suggested that other fire safety techniques, such as

         10  compartmentation, a design scheme in which the

         11  building is broken into small limits to limit the

         12  spread of smoke and fire, and alarm systems, do not

         13  provide tall buildings with the same level of fire

         14  protection afforded by being fully sprinklered.

         15                 In an emergency situation, such extra

         16  protection may prove to be critical. Therefore, the

         17  Task Force found that the existing regulation

         18  calling for compartmentation, smoke alarms and

         19  stairwell pressurization should be enhanced by

         20  requiring the addition of fully sprinklered systems

         21  to tall office buildings.

         22                 The bill provides for partial waivers

         23  where installation would be impracticable due to

         24  structural conditions or interior landmarked

         25  designation.
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          2                 The next three retroactive

          3  requirements deal with emergency egress.

          4                 These requirements emphasize the need

          5  for clarity or readability of an exit path as

          6  essential for a successful evacuation.

          7                 The many new exit signs and markings

          8  installed in the World Trade Center after the 1993

          9  bombing, were credited with helping to speed

         10  evacuation on September 11th, 2001.

         11                 Thus, the first retroactive

         12  requirement is the installation of additional

         13  eliminated exit signs by January 1st of 2007 in the

         14  stairwells of all existing highrise office buildings

         15  where the exit path may not be clear.

         16                 Second, the bill mandates that

         17  certain grandfathered in illuminated exit signs,

         18  which do not have to currently have back-up power,

         19  be connected to back-up power via battery packs.

         20                 Third, this bill will require new and

         21  existing highrise office buildings to install

         22  markings that are photoluminescent. That's the

         23  technical term for things that glow in the dark, on

         24  exit doors and in exit stairs beginning January 1st,

         25  2006.
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          2                 This will provide assistance to guild

          3  occupants to exit doors and down the stairs, even

          4  when water, explosion or other hazards have knocked

          5  out the emergency batteries or generators.

          6                 This requirement is, of course, a

          7  minimum requirement, and does not prevent an owner

          8  from using additional types of luminescent sign

          9  markings.

         10                 All of these are basic tools that

         11  should help make emergency evacuations easier,

         12  faster and safer.

         13                 While on the topic of evacuation,

         14  it's important to note that existing laws, rules and

         15  procedures, only address the evacuation of buildings

         16  in the event of a fire. They do not address

         17  non-fire-related emergency. And the fire safety

         18  plans required for highrise office buildings

         19  generally only provide for partial evacuation of a

         20  building in conjunction with conventional

         21  firefighting operations.

         22                 Intro. 126 takes into account a much

         23  larger spectrum of potential emergencies. Planning

         24  for differing types and scales of public safety

         25  threats is needed now.
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          2                 Thus, the bill authorizes the Fire

          3  Department to require plans for full evacuation

          4  drills for non-fire-related emergencies in all

          5  existing office buildings 75 feet or higher.

          6                 The second broad category of

          7  co-changes consists of prohibitions applicable to

          8  all new construction work. As proposed, all three of

          9  these prohibitions would be effectively immediately.

         10                 The first prohibition involves

         11  scissor stairs. A scissor stair contains two

         12  intertwined but distinct stairwells, each separated

         13  from the other by fire-rated walls, floors and

         14  ceilings.

         15                 While this arrangement provides an

         16  efficient floor layout, it also concentrates the two

         17  means of egress in the same physical location in the

         18  building.

         19                 Should a catastrophic event isolate a

         20  portion of a floor containing a scissor stair, both

         21  stairs could be rendered unusable, trapping the

         22  occupants with no way to get out.

         23                 This bill will prohibit scissor

         24  stairs from being used to satisfy egress

         25  requirements in new and altered highrise office
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          2  buildings with floor plates of over 10,000 square

          3  feet.

          4                 In addition, the bill imposes a

          5  temporary prohibition on the use of open web steel

          6  joists, also known as composite bar floor joist

          7  systems -- bar joist floor systems, in new

          8  commercial highrise construction. We also note that

          9  currently these are not in fact used in New York

         10  City highrises.

         11                 Once further studies are completed

         12  and we are closely following research efforts at the

         13  National Institute of Standards and Technology for

         14  Guidance and Information, the Department will issue

         15  appropriate technical standards addressing their

         16  usage in New York City.

         17                 The last prohibition will restrict

         18  the use of oversized fuel oil transfer piping.

         19                 Businesses today have an increased

         20  reliance on computers and communication systems

         21  requiring reliable and uninterrupted supply of

         22  electricity.

         23                 This has lead many businesses to

         24  install fuel burning emergency generators, some on

         25  the upper stories of buildings.
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          2                 The current building code permits

          3  large fuel oil storage tanks in a building's lowest

          4  floors and in below ground locations, and permits

          5  the fuel to be pumped in pipes to smaller storage

          6  tanks on the upper floors.

          7                 Although these upper story fuel oil

          8  storage tanks are limited to 275 gallons, oversized

          9  pipes have the practical effect of allowing more

         10  than 275 gallons on one floor.

         11                 Lacking inadequate alternative

         12  protections, these pipes are undesirable from a fire

         13  safety perspective.

         14                 The third broad category of code

         15  changes involves additional requirements for new

         16  construction in New York City.

         17                 All but one of these would be

         18  effective immediately. Two of these involve

         19  elevators. Currently stair and elevator shafts are

         20  required to be constructed of materials that are

         21  intended to withstand pressure from a firefighter's

         22  hose stream. However, the Fire Department reports

         23  that in the field, these improved materials may not

         24  adequate resist actual full-stream pressure.

         25                 To address this, this bill compels
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          2  the Department to develop minimum standards for

          3  impact resistance of stair and elevator enclosures

          4  that are higher than our current standards.

          5                 It is likely that these requirements

          6  can be met through the use of existing readily

          7  available materials, such as reinforced wall board

          8  or concrete where desired.

          9                 Additionally, Intro. 126 requires

         10  elevators in new highrise office buildings serving

         11  four or more stories to be protected by smoke stop

         12  elevator vestibules.

         13                 In smoke conditions, elevator shafts

         14  have the potential of carrying smoke throughout a

         15  highrise building. These smoke vestibule areas at

         16  the elevator stops above a building's ground floor

         17  serve to prevent smoke in buildings from

         18  contaminating elevator shafts, and further, to

         19  prevent smoke in elevator shafts from spreading

         20  throughout the rest of the building.

         21                 While the Building Code has strict

         22  minimum specifications and fire safety standards for

         23  fuel oil piping that transfers oil from cellars to

         24  the upper-story storage tanks, as I mentioned

         25  before, it does not contain technical standards
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          2  regulating transfer piping used to transport this

          3  fuel oil to generators on upper floors.

          4                 The proposed Local Law establishes

          5  these technical standards, which address issues of

          6  pipe gauges, welds and joints, and the fire rating

          7  of pipe chases.

          8                 The Building Code also requires that

          9  air intakes be placed at or close to ground level --

         10  that air intakes placed at or close to ground level

         11  will be a minimum of six feet above grade.

         12                 To prevent the introduction of

         13  unwanted fumes, gases or particles into the building

         14  ventilation system, either intentionally or

         15  unintentionally or by design, Intro. 126 requires

         16  new air intake serving mechanical ventilation

         17  systems to be 20 feet above ground level, 20 feet

         18  away from ventilation exhaust, and 20 feet from

         19  loading bays.

         20                 The bill additionally addresses the

         21  need for sprayed-on fireproofing to remain viable

         22  throughout the lifetime of a building.

         23                 Sprayed on fireproofing only works

         24  properly when it remains intact on the building's

         25  elements. This fireproofing can be dislodged over
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          2  time due to local renovations, alterations, or other

          3  construction activities. The bill addresses this by

          4  requiring controlled inspections to assess the

          5  condition of existing sprayed on fireproofing

          6  whenever alterations are performed in highrise

          7  office buildings that make the fireproofing visible.

          8                 Finally, the Building Code has for

          9  many years required that any mechanical duct work

         10  passing through a fire-rated wall include a damper

         11  that drops shut when the fire is detected.

         12                 These fire dampers are integral to

         13  preventing the spread of fire to other parts of a

         14  building.

         15                 These tests are not often performed,

         16  as the currently building code does not explicitly

         17  state that engineers certify the proper testing and

         18  installation of these dampers.

         19                 Accordingly, the bill requires a

         20  controlled inspection of the fire dampers when new

         21  ventilation systems are constructed in order to

         22  ensure that the dampers are correctly installed and

         23  that they will work when they're needed.

         24                 In addition to these three broad

         25  categories, the bill also makes two other changes of
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          2  note to the building code. These are unique in that

          3  they neither require nor prohibit anything, but

          4  instead increase the options an owner has to enhance

          5  the safety of his building or her building.

          6                 First, the bill will exclude floor

          7  drains in elevator shafts and in elevator vestibules

          8  from fixture count calculations, further encouraging

          9  their installation.

         10                 Second, this Local Law will

         11  reintroduce a recognition of fire towers, which is

         12  separated exits that are open to external

         13  ventilation, and will permit fire towers as an

         14  option to comply with the existing exit stair

         15  provisions.

         16                 Collectively, the 13 changes I've

         17  just outlined will have a significant and positive

         18  impact upon the safety of highrise office buildings,

         19  their occupants, and emergency responders.

         20                 These changes, of course, may not

         21  represent the end of the process of review and the

         22  improvement of code.

         23                 As additional studies are completed

         24  and we obtain more information, more changes may be

         25  made, but these are important steps in achieving
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          2  major advances in improving building design.

          3                 As I've mentioned above, further

          4  follow-up with entities like the National Institute

          5  of Standards and Technology, as well as the

          6  Department's review of the International Building

          7  Code, will be ongoing. But all agree that these

          8  changes are a positive step to keep New York City

          9  safe and to enhance its competitiveness.

         10                 They do so in a manner that all of

         11  the relevant stakeholders agree is economically

         12  feasible and practical. They deserve to become law.

         13                 The Task Force, and I want to thank

         14  the Task Force members that are here for all the

         15  time and for my staff for all of their energy and

         16  time, caring, for the Task Force has tackled

         17  considerable challenges and has carried out its

         18  responsibilities admirably. The fruits of its labor

         19  will not only bring comfort in the enhanced highrise

         20  safety regulations, but also in peace of mind they

         21  will have helped to bring New Yorkers -- in a peace

         22  of mind that they will have helped to bring to New

         23  Yorkers who now fear the worst.

         24                 I'd like to thank again the Task

         25  Force members, including the managing committee and
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          2  technical subcommittee members for their commitment

          3  and time and thank you for your time today. I'd be

          4  happy to take a few questions.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Before we

          6  take questions we're going to hear from Chief

          7  Patrick Savage from the New York City Fire

          8  Department.

          9                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER: Their remarks

         10  are in with these.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Pat, are you

         12  speaking? Or just to take questions?

         13                 CHIEF SAVAGE: No.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Okay. So then

         15  we'll let you know that the Chief is here to take

         16  any questions that would relate to the Fire

         17  Department. So then they're just sitting there

         18  waiting for questions, good.

         19                 Mark, you don't look so sure.

         20                 Do we have anybody else here? We've

         21  also been joined by Council Member Lew Fidler and

         22  Council Member Robert Jackson, and somebody back

         23  here. Council Member Melinda Katz. And Council

         24  Member Diana Reyna, how did I not know that was you?

         25  Okay, my new chair of the Subcommittee, okay.
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          2                 I have a couple of simple questions

          3  and then I'll turn it over to the rest of the

          4  Council members.

          5                 Has the Department of Buildings

          6  solicited any comments from the Port Authority

          7  concerning this proposal, as to whether they would

          8  be willing to comply with the provisions of this

          9  bill, should we, and hopefully we will, adopt it

         10  into law? Has there been any communication?

         11                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER: The Port

         12  Authority was part of the World Trade Center

         13  Building Code Task Force and as such they have sort

         14  of provided consensus around the recommendations.

         15                 There is an existing memorandum of

         16  understanding with the Port Authority that they will

         17  comply with the Building Code, so as these are

         18  incorporated we have a commitment from them to

         19  include them in their own buildings, as well.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: And what is

         21  the time frame, or is there any, for them to start

         22  building?

         23                 I mean, does it look like we're going

         24  to get this passed before they start? Or does it

         25  look like they may start before we get this passed?
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          2  I mean, I'd like to get it passed tomorrow, but...

          3                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER: The

          4  Silverstein building is already in construction, and

          5  we met several times with them and they've done a

          6  lot, in some ways passed the strictness of the

          7  recommendation. So, they're all on board and done.

          8                 With regard to the other buildings, I

          9  believe that the design is ongoing and will take

         10  about a year to get in construction, and I hope this

         11  bill will be passed by then.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Okay.

         13                 As you know, I've been very involved

         14  with the IBC, with the code committee that we have

         15  set up now and that's moving along very nicely.

         16                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER: For my

         17  co-chair.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: And I just

         19  threatened them a little at the last meeting, told

         20  them I'd like to finish before I'm out of here so

         21  that only gives them two years. And they seemed to

         22  be happy about it, so...

         23                 But I'm curious as to how the future

         24  adoption of the IBC code would effect some of the

         25  time frames that we have in 126.
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          2                 For instance, in looking at the

          3  sprinkler, the installation of sprinklers, which has

          4  like an outyear of 2019.

          5                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER: It's likely

          6  that the Building Code, or what normally happens

          7  when you adopt a new code is that things built under

          8  the old code are built according to the old code and

          9  things under the new code are built according to the

         10  new code. The sprinkler piece of this legislation is

         11  retroactive for existing buildings and therefore

         12  would stand but the buildings would not be required

         13  to fully comply with the new code because they would

         14  be grandfathered into the old code.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Okay. I have

         16  a couple more but I'm going to turn this over to --

         17  I think we have a list of folks that have questions.

         18                 Council Member Rivera.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA: Thank you very

         20  much, Madam Chair.

         21                 First I want to thank Commissioner

         22  Lancaster for your leadership and thank the task

         23  force for their efforts in helping on the production

         24  of Intro. 126. My question goes towards the Fire

         25  Department Chief Patrick Savage.
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          2                 Now, when this bill gets implemented

          3  it will give the Department the authority to develop

          4  evacuation procedures for all types of buildings.

          5  Now, do you foresee that mandating a second type of

          6  fire drill for these buildings, or would it just be

          7  encompassing the old former fire drills that

          8  currently take place?

          9                 CHIEF SAVAGE: First off, I'm sure

         10  that this bill is for highrise office evacuations.

         11  All during the process we tried to digress to other

         12  occupancies, and it would have taken us off line.

         13  Let's pass this for a highrise office, and we know

         14  we have to branch out to all other occupancies, but

         15  if we can get this passed, we can build off it.

         16                 And relative to the evacuation is

         17  separate from fire drill. Total different frame of

         18  mind, we'll have fire drills, fire related. This is

         19  non-fire-related, we can use elevators, we can use

         20  other alternatives. It's going to be two separate

         21  entities, and we have to build that into the

         22  public's mind, that fire, with staying the way we

         23  had it, it works. This is for a total different type

         24  of catastrophe that it's going to be a full building

         25  evacuation.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA: Do we have any

          3  type of evacuation plan available so that people

          4  would be aware -- you'll be conducting the

          5  evacuation procedures in the same manner as a fire

          6  drill, like there will be a fire drill, and then

          7  there will be a second type of evacuation?

          8                 CHIEF SAVAGE: They'll still be doing

          9  their two fire drills per year, they'll be checking

         10  on that as a separate thing.

         11                 We are in the process, we knew the

         12  bill was coming, and as soon as it's passed, we are

         13  close to finalizing our staff chiefs, our Operations

         14  have it now. But we don't want to tell them about

         15  it. We're not going to put it out there yet, for

         16  them to do the work without approving the bill

         17  first. But we are very close to having a finalized

         18  product for highrise office. And as I said, we have

         19  to branch out to other occupancies, but we can't

         20  muddy the waters with this right now. Let's pass it

         21  for highrise and then next month we'll go into other

         22  occupancies.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA: Thank you very

         24  much.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Following
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          2  that line of questioning, I'm going to take 250

          3  Broadway, which holds many of our City Council

          4  offices. And presently they have two mandated fire

          5  drills a year. So, according to your response to

          6  Councilman Rivera, there would be an additional

          7  drill, do you still call it a fire drill, for

          8  evacuation? How do they differ?

          9                 CHIEF SAVAGE: Emergency Action Plan

         10  we're calling it. Emergency Action Plan, Emergency

         11  Action Drill.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: How do they

         13  differ? How does a fire drill differ from an

         14  emergency?

         15                 CHIEF SAVAGE: Fire drill, the

         16  occupants and tenants do not have to leave the

         17  floor.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: You don't

         19  have to leave the floor.

         20                 CHIEF SAVAGE: You don't have to leave

         21  the floor.

         22                 The Fire Safety Director, Floor

         23  Wardens meet by the elevator, review, do not use an

         24  elevator during the fire. There's your fire warden

         25  station, there's your stairwell, here's the
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          2  communication and questions. They do not leave the

          3  floor. They do those two drills per year. No one

          4  walks down the building, don't know where the stairs

          5  are, they really never have to leave the floor or

          6  the building.

          7                 This one, you're going to have to

          8  come up with a whole new plan, intensive plan, on

          9  how you're going to evacuate everyone out of the

         10  building, either at one time or phase.

         11                 The blackout brought up a big problem

         12  that people did have to do a full building

         13  evacuation. We have in place already from the fire

         14  alarm system, the voice communication. We have it in

         15  place to make the announcement, but we need the

         16  training for the Fire Safety Director or the person

         17  who is going to be in charge of this full building

         18  evacuation.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Okay. So, you

         20  said you're going to need a whole new plan for this;

         21  who is the "you" in that sentence?

         22                 CHIEF SAVAGE: We look at it as three

         23  people involved, Building Security, Fire Safety

         24  Director and Building Management. Also, they will

         25  have to bring the engineers, operating engineers
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          2  involved in it. They have to get together, devise

          3  this plan, train the people in charge.

          4                 We will give a template, we will give

          5  the requirements of this plan, but it's going to be

          6  more comprehensive than a fire drill.

          7                 You have to have a Fire Safety Plan,

          8  you have to have a Fire Protection Plan in place

          9  right now by law. We're separating it with Fire

         10  Safety Plan, fire drills do work for fire only, but

         11  you can't use elevators during a fire, and it's a

         12  different mindframe. You're getting out of the

         13  building or relocating to another floor. With full

         14  building evacuation or a partial evacuation, you're

         15  going to have to write down and you're going to have

         16  to train everyone how to leave the building.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: And will it

         18  be the Fire Department that's training these people,

         19  or the other people coming in?

         20                 CHIEF SAVAGE: We're looking at

         21  additional training for fire safety directors. They

         22  have a certificate of fitness, they have classes,

         23  they have to attend a course.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: So, it could

         25  be anybody that's working in the building that could
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          2  volunteer to be a Fire Safety Director?

          3                 CHIEF SAVAGE: You do need a

          4  background. There's certain background requirements,

          5  as in order to take the certificate of fitness test.

          6  You have to have five years of applicable

          7  experience, it's only three years now. As

          8  superintendent, a floor warden does count. There are

          9  in-service people in the building that do qualify

         10  and have the applicable experience.

         11                 The Fire Safety Director is there

         12  already. So, he needs just a little bit more

         13  training. He's trained in fire evacuation. He now

         14  has to be trained in full building, how to use the

         15  elevators during an emergency.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: And who is

         17  keeping track of these people to make sure that

         18  they're doing all these things?

         19                 CHIEF SAVAGE: New Fire Safety

         20  Directors will have possibly another day of

         21  training. Present Fire Safety Directors will

         22  probably have to be brought in for another day of

         23  training to enhance the certificate of fitness for

         24  full building evacuation.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Okay, I don't

                                                            34

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  want to belabor this, but I was in a movie the other

          3  day, fifth floor up, and we had to evacuate because

          4  there was a fire. So, I'm like really interested in

          5  it now. But I'll pass.

          6                 Next is Councilwoman Reyna.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Thank you,

          8  Madam Chair.

          9                 I just wanted to ask the

         10  Commissioner, or perhaps the Chief, if in just

         11  reviewing this legislation, this piece of

         12  legislation, will you be considering these standards

         13  and provisions to be applied to structures and

         14  spaces other than commercial buildings, for

         15  instance, residential buildings?

         16                 And taking into consideration

         17  September 11th attacks, we had the World Trade

         18  Center, as well as other buildings surrounding it

         19  that were affected, and then just taking into

         20  consideration the blackout, highrise residential

         21  buildings, let's say in the outer boroughs, Mitchell

         22  Lama buildings, or your public housing highrise 22

         23  floors, how is that being taken into consideration

         24  for application of this particular legislation in

         25  the near future, if not at all?
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          2                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER: This

          3  particular piece of legislation, Intro. 126, deals

          4  only with highrise office buildings. However,

          5  concurrently, the revisions to the International

          6  Building Code that are pertinent for New York City

          7  is an effort that's going on concurrently. So, it's

          8  likely that the International Building Code as

          9  revised could contain provisions such as the

         10  emergency lighting in stairwells for highrise

         11  residential buildings that it doesn't have now.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Can you just

         13  confirm that, considering you're overseeing this, as

         14  well as the Chair, as your co-chair, on this task

         15  force, go back to the task force and just review

         16  that piece concerning residential buildings,

         17  highrise residential buildings, so that we can

         18  confirm that in the near future this will come out

         19  in the buildings, in the new international building

         20  code that we're trying to adopt.

         21                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER: Yes, I don't

         22  think that necessarily all of the provisions that

         23  are necessary for highrise office buildings are

         24  necessary for highrise residential buildings,

         25  because the density is so much lower. But I will go
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          2  back to the technical subcommittees and make sure

          3  that they're aware of these changes and of some of

          4  the things that came up during the blackout, which

          5  we've already got a list of things that we're

          6  looking at to make the technical committee chairs

          7  aware, reaware, you know, that they're supposed to

          8  be looking at that.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: And

         10  Commissioner, I just wanted to define, commercial

         11  building highrise is how many floors, beginning at

         12  the minimum level?

         13                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER: It's not done

         14  by floor, it's done by height, and it's 75 feet and

         15  over.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Seventy-five

         17  feet and over and I apologize, I'm just trying to

         18  figure out --

         19                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER: Well, a story

         20  is about ten feet, and lobbies are about 15 feet. So

         21  seven-story building.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: So 75 feet

         23  would be 11 stories --

         24                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER: Seven.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Seven stories.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER: Just divide

          3  it by ten basically.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Okay. Thank

          5  you.

          6                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER: Yes.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Also, Diana,

          8  there are other members that have expressed the same

          9  kind of interest, so at some time we may have a

         10  hearing that addresses that.

         11                 Council Member Oddo.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Thank you, Madam

         13  Chair.

         14                 Commissioner, welcome. Nicely done.

         15                 I started out my day today by

         16  testifying before the Landmarks Preservation

         17  Commission, so let me start with that.

         18                 In your testimony you talk about with

         19  respect to the sprinklers that the bill would

         20  provide for a partial waiver where the insulation

         21  would be impracticable due to structure conditions,

         22  due to material landmark designation.

         23                 Do we have any idea how many

         24  buildings that would include? Are we talking about a

         25  universe of just a few buildings that would be
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          2  eligible for the partial waiver on the sprinklers,

          3  or are we talking about dozens?

          4                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER: Mark Topping.

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER TOPPING: We don't

          6  have an exact count of the buildings that we're

          7  required to retrofit. We think it's in the order of

          8  magnitude of 200 to 300, as many as 400, a subset of

          9  those may have landmark designations, and, so, until

         10  they file their first report, and indicate what

         11  their plan is to retrofit for sprinkler would we

         12  know the exact number that might be applying for a

         13  landmark waiver or anything like that.

         14                 So, the answer is no, we don't know

         15  the exact number, but we wanted to make sure that

         16  provision was included, so that if we did come up to

         17  that case.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: That's 200 or

         19  300 potentially of the overall universe of

         20  buildings? I just want to get an idea of percentage.

         21  Are we talking about ten percent of buildings

         22  theoretically?

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER TOPPING: I

         24  couldn't give you an exact percentage but it's in

         25  that order of magnitude, yes.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Okay.

          3                 The second item is has to do with the

          4  emergency egress, and there seems to be an ongoing

          5  discussion, and I'm sure my colleagues have received

          6  some of the literature that has been put out by

          7  competing interests. If we could just have the

          8  discussion on how we arrived at photoluminescent.

          9  There's some folks that, frankly, are pushing

         10  electroluminescence and there are folks that say

         11  that there's stuff that's cheaper than

         12  photoluminescence but not as effective; can we just

         13  have a few words on how we arrived at and why we

         14  believe that photo is indeed the best way to go?

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER TOPPING: The

         16  reason why we chose photoluminescence as opposed to

         17  electroluminescence is in the event of a -- an

         18  unforeseen event, it's likely that the electrical

         19  supplies would be compromised, and, so, we wanted a

         20  system that would allow for markings and to indicate

         21  egress path, if there was no electricity. So,

         22  photoluminescent is an obvious choice in that

         23  instance to provide for a directional science

         24  without power.

         25                 In terms of whether other
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          2  alternatives are available, I think that the

          3  legislation enables us to pass a rule to set

          4  standards for the luminescent materials, we'll

          5  certainly look to provide the rules so that as many

          6  materials can be used as we'll perform the functions

          7  we're looking for, to provide in the dark markings

          8  so that people can evacuate.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Are there any

         10  plans to expand the universe of locations.

         11                 My colleague Diana Reyna asked about

         12  the, generally about residential dwellings, but in

         13  respect specifically to the emergency egress, is

         14  there any discussion to expand the universe to

         15  outside locations, parks, et cetera, public arenas?

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER TOPPING: In terms

         17  of full evacuation plans, one of the considerations

         18  that has been under discussion, and Chief Savage can

         19  talk about this, too, is that in their plan they

         20  have to note what plans they have for the effective

         21  discharge of occupants of buildings and where

         22  they're going to go, and, so, they have to have part

         23  of their plan, a designation as to where occupants

         24  will gather.

         25                 And, so, in that case it may be a
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          2  nearby park, or may be something. One of the things

          3  the buildings need to do is make sure that they're

          4  coordinated with other buildings in the area, so you

          5  don't have everyone going to the same spot at a

          6  time, but that would be part of the full building

          7  evacuation.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: One last

          9  question, Madam Chair. You know, as much as we'd

         10  like to think that we're on the cutting edge, very

         11  often New York City is actually behind the curve.

         12                 One of the issues that we've been

         13  working on for a long time is defibrillators, and no

         14  disrespect, we have little towns like San Diego that

         15  they're way ahead of New York City on this.

         16                 In the course of this process, did we

         17  review, understanding that New York City is unique

         18  and the skyline and the infrastructure of New York

         19  City is unique, did we review other jurisdictions to

         20  see if there were any other good ideas that other

         21  folks have had before us that other folks can

         22  incorporate into making our cities that much safer?

         23                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER: Yes, we did.

         24  We actually examined Building Codes worldwide, and I

         25  think worldwide the state-of-the-art is changing as
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          2  terrorism gets more rampant, and that more

          3  technology and more operational procedures will

          4  emerge over time, and the same thing is happening

          5  with technology in elevator shaft enclosures where

          6  we say we want it to be hardened, and we

          7  specifically didn't say cement because there are new

          8  materials on the market every day and we want to

          9  allow for these things that are more economically

         10  feasible.

         11                 So, the other part of the answer to

         12  your question is, one of the gains that it makes for

         13  New York City to be going, moving towards adopting a

         14  revised international building code is that

         15  nationwide technical committees are held in a

         16  three-year continuing cycle to make sure that the

         17  basic code, you know, the base code is up-to-date

         18  technologically and in every other way as possible,

         19  so that we're not in this alone in the way that we

         20  were before with having to make sure that, you know,

         21  somebody in the Department knew all the

         22  technological advances that are taking place all

         23  over the world. Now there are legions of

         24  professionals that are out there proposing revisions

         25  or bringing the technology forward in a way to be
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          2  considered by the International Building Code, or

          3  exception or rejection, I mean either way. But now

          4  we have a much better sense of we're at least aware

          5  of what is going on out there.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: I would also

          7  like to introduce Council Member Latitia James, who

          8  has recently joined us, and she has a question.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Good morning.

         10  Good morning, Commissioner.

         11                 Commissioner, your definition of

         12  highrise buildings, you said it was 75 feet and

         13  taller, correct?

         14                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER: Correct.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: But I have

         16  reviewed the legislation just briefly and it refers

         17  to a building 100 feet and taller, so is it 100 or

         18  is it 75?

         19                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER: Actually, the

         20  definition of highrise is in the code as being, is

         21  defined in the code as being 75 feet. The sprinkler

         22  legislation, retroactive sprinkler legislation is

         23  specifically geared to buildings over 100 feet and

         24  over.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: And the
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          2  retroactive requirements for office buildings 100

          3  feet or more, correct? In Section 27-929?

          4                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER: No.

          5                 Yes, the rest of it is all under the

          6  definition of highrise, which is 75.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: And the

          8  "hardship exemption," could you just explain that

          9  to me, please, or walk me through that?

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER TOPPING: As the

         11  '84 provisions required some retrofitting of

         12  sprinklers and in some cases where there were

         13  hardships, they could choose an alternative being

         14  compartmentation, and provided that it met certain

         15  requirements.

         16                 We, in this bill, we're requiring

         17  them to sprinkler those portions in those buildings

         18  to be sprinklered as well.

         19                 We don't anticipate there will be

         20  significant exemptions from the retrofit, but we

         21  can't predict every instance in every situation that

         22  might be out there.

         23                 So, for instance, with the landmark

         24  designations, there may be a case where we need to

         25  provide for some sort of exemptions or alternatives
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          2  that still meet those performance standards and

          3  providing for safety.

          4                 There are certain instances that we

          5  can't predict that we need to be able to provide for

          6  that waiver.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: And the term

          8  hardship and waiver provisions are being used

          9  interchangeably? Are there other waiver provisions

         10  which apply other than hardship?

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER TOPPING: The

         12  hardship provisions are as the rest of the code

         13  defines is if there are areas where we can't achieve

         14  certain prescriptive provisions of the building

         15  code, they have to provide for equivalent variances

         16  so that they can still perform whatever the

         17  objective of that section of code is.

         18                 So, the hardship is not meant to be

         19  just a general economic hardship, it's really if

         20  there are physical conditions that prohibit the use

         21  of sprinklers or there are installations or

         22  occupancies that make it possible to use or would

         23  actually be counter to the safety, then we have to

         24  provide for some other equivalent variance.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Can you also
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          2  walk me through the penalties portion of this bill?

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER TOPPING: Excuse

          4  me?

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Could you also

          6  walk me through the penalties portion of this bill,

          7  this proposed bill?

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER TOPPING: The

          9  proposed bill, over a 15-year period they are

         10  required to do the retrofit of sprinklers, and

         11  they're required to do reporting to the progress and

         12  so we don't end up at 15 years trying to make sure

         13  that people are doing their retrofit at that point.

         14                 So, as they go through, within those

         15  reporting periods, we have penalties that ensure

         16  that they do those reporting at those interim points

         17  and that they're moving forward with sprinklers, and

         18  we have escalations.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: And what are

         20  those penalties?

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER TOPPING: I don't

         22  actually know.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: You can get

         24  that back to me.

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER TOPPING: We'll
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          2  get that back to you.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: And just two

          4  more, three more questions.

          5                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER: Actually, can

          6  I add something on that --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Sure.

          8                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER: -- Subject

          9  too, which is to say that the Department is getting

         10  calls and letters and so on from the people not

         11  affected by this bill that want to understand the

         12  provision so that they can do it voluntarily. And I

         13  think that Citywide landlords and tenants alike are

         14  concerned to be as prepared as they can, so that

         15  some of them -- and also in answer to Councilperson

         16  Reyna's comment, there are people who are doing

         17  these things voluntarily.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: And is there a

         19  fiscal note to this bill? And is there any

         20  anticipated budget considerations, given I would

         21  anticipate you were going to need inspectors, an

         22  increased budget for inspectors and compliance?

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER TOPPING: We don't

         24  anticipate that there's any fiscal impact for the

         25  Department of Buildings.
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          2                 Many of the provisions are filing

          3  requirements that we should be able to handle. We

          4  haven't fully scoped out whether there would be any

          5  impact, but we should be able to handle that within

          6  the Department of Operations. Some of the other

          7  provisions with regard to certification by

          8  architects and engineers can be handled through

          9  existing mechanisms of our department filings and

         10  construction monitoring and that sort of thing. So,

         11  at this time we don't anticipate there will be

         12  direct fiscal impacts for the departments.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: And lastly,

         14  this bill is not prospective, it applies to

         15  different buildings, correct?

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER TOPPING: There

         17  are provisions of the bill that are retroactive that

         18  apply to existing buildings. There are provisions of

         19  the bill that prohibit or enable or require for new

         20  construction, certain proscriptions and that sort of

         21  thing. So it's both retroactive and prospective.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Thank you very

         23  much.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you.

         25  Any other questions? Okay, thank you all.
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          2                 What I'm going to try and do is put

          3  people in panels of either two or three, and

          4  hopefully I'm lumping you together with folks who

          5  have the same ideas. If I mess up on that, well,

          6  that's life.

          7                 Sally Regenhard and do we have Monica

          8  Gabrielle?

          9                 MS. REGENHARD: Okay. Good afternoon,

         10  Ms. Provenzano and your Committee. I'm very happy to

         11  be here. I should start off by saying that I'm the

         12  Founder and Chairperson of Skyscraper Safety

         13  Campaign. On 9/11 I lost my only son.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Sally,

         15  introduce yourself. Say your name.

         16                 MS. REGENHARD: Sally Regenhard.

         17                 I lost my only son, Probationary

         18  Firefighter, Christian Regenhard, who was one of 343

         19  firefighters, one of 97 single firefighters, many of

         20  whom were under the age of 30.

         21                 I'm here today to thank every single

         22  member of this Committee. I must tell you that there

         23  are families of the victims residing in every

         24  Councilmatic district of all the Committee members

         25  here, from Staten Island to Queens, to Brooklyn, to
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          2  the Bronx, Upper Manhattan, Lower Manhattan and

          3  Washington Heights.

          4                 My colleague, this gentleman, Mr.

          5  Baptiste, is a resident of Washington Heights and

          6  he'll say a few brief words also regarding the loss

          7  of his firefighter son.

          8                 I'm here with my co-chair Monica

          9  Gabrielle, who lost her husband, and a resident of

         10  Manhattan. Very quickly, I would just like to ask

         11  you today, it's been two years since this process

         12  started. It's been one year since Mayor Bloomberg's

         13  Code's Committee issued the recommendations, 21

         14  recommendations, 13 of which you will be considering

         15  today.

         16                 I would urge every member of your

         17  Committee to unanimously pass every single of the

         18  suggestive 13 reforms. I'd like to see all of the

         19  reforms enacted in a quick manner.

         20                 I'd like to say that in the past

         21  building safety and building codes in this City for

         22  the past 30 years have been dictated by economic

         23  considerations, they been dictated by lobbyists,

         24  real estate interests, builders and developers.

         25                 9/11 changed everything. The cloak of
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          2  competence was pulled off the City of New York, and

          3  the cloak of secrecy was pulled off the codes

          4  groups, Codes Committee, builders, developers and

          5  real estate interests.

          6                 We all need to work together as my

          7  organization is very proud to work with both the

          8  international building code and the NPFA, as well as

          9  the wonderful Mayor Bloomberg's Codes Committee. We

         10  have our experts in every single aspect.

         11                 Years ago there was a conflict

         12  between building safety and the lobby and special

         13  interest groups that I just mentioned. Since 9/11 we

         14  all need to work together, and I will say that the

         15  light of accountability and responsibility is being

         16  shed on codes groups, on builders, on developers.

         17                 We are working with the insurance

         18  field to convince them that a safe building is good

         19  for all concerned. Passing these recommendations,

         20  making buildings safer is good for the builders, the

         21  developers, the owners, and the insurers, and, of

         22  course, the people who need to live in those

         23  buildings, work in those buildings and fight fires

         24  in those buildings.

         25                 So, I look forward to working with
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          2  many of you who are here, and my continued work with

          3  the City Council.

          4                 I must add, I'd like to mention that

          5  my colleague from Staten Island Dennis McKeon, who

          6  runs a very large 9/11 advocacy group, cannot be

          7  here today. But he supports all the statements of

          8  the skyscraper safety campaign.

          9                 I'd like to finish by saying that

         10  there was reference to the Port Authority and I must

         11  say that I hold the Department of Buildings, Ms.

         12  Lancaster, her group, in very, very high esteem.

         13  However, I must add to the comments regarding the

         14  Port Authority.

         15                 I'm very glad, Ms. Provenzano, that

         16  you asked the question that you did. I want everyone

         17  on this Committee and all those present, to be

         18  cognizant of the fact that the Port Authority is 100

         19  percent totally immune from every single New York

         20  City building and fire code.

         21                 The Port Authority for the last 30

         22  years has maintained that they not only meet but

         23  exceed New York City Building and Fire Codes. I must

         24  tell you that is categorically untrue.

         25                 If the Port Authority met or exceeded
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          2  New York City Building and Fire Codes, they never

          3  would have been allowed to build buildings like the

          4  World Trade Center. Buildings of that height and

          5  that size made of 100 percent bar joist

          6  construction, that has never been allowed in this

          7  City before, and it has never been and never will be

          8  allowed in the future in this City or any other City

          9  in the world. That's one example.

         10                 I will tell you that the memorandums

         11  of understanding are something, you know, that is

         12  referred to over and over again.

         13                 A memorandum of understanding, as

         14  many of you will know, means nothing under the law.

         15  A memorandum of understanding can be compared to a

         16  kiss and a promise. I'm sure many of us have

         17  received many of those during our lifetime.

         18                 The Port Authority says that they

         19  allow the Fire Department to come into their

         20  building. That's true. They can come in. What they

         21  don't tell you is when the Fire Department comes in,

         22  whatever violation they find is meaningless. They

         23  will allow them to come in but the City of New York

         24  has no enforcement. No enforcement.

         25                 I wanted to clarify that, because the
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          2  Skyscraper Safety Campaign continues to work to get

          3  the immunity to building and fire codes removed from

          4  the Port Authority in the rebuilding of the World

          5  Trade Center. The least, the people of this City,

          6  this State and this country deserve is to be able to

          7  go into these buildings and have the confidence that

          8  the wonderful Department of Buildings and the Fire

          9  Department is responsible, legally responsible for

         10  these buildings.

         11                 In all deference to Mr. Larry

         12  Silverstein and his safety improvements and his

         13  going, you know, going even above safety

         14  improvements, that's fine. However, safety

         15  improvements are no good, unless there's enforcement

         16  and there's oversight. There is no enforcement,

         17  there is no oversight in the World Trade Center.

         18  Currently the Skyscraper Safety Campaign is working

         19  with elected officials to change the Charter of the

         20  Port Authority, change the law.

         21                 And I'll finish my comments by

         22  saying, if indeed the Port Authority not only meets

         23  and exceeds New York City Building and Fire Code,

         24  why on earth would they resist going under the legal

         25  jurisdiction of this City, the City Council, the
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          2  Fire Department and the Department of Buildings,

          3  which are all entities that I have the greatest

          4  confidence in.

          5                 I'd like to now introduce to say a

          6  few words, Mr. Gerard Baptiste from Washington

          7  Heights and a wonderful supporter and someone with

          8  whom I share the grief of losing a son.

          9                 MR. BAPTISTE: Good afternoon. I am

         10  Mr. Gerard Baptiste. I lost my son, Gerard Baptiste

         11  --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Mr. Baptiste,

         13  let me just remind you that when you're finished,

         14  you have to fill out one of these.

         15                 MR. BAPTISTE: Okay.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Okay? Go

         17  ahead.

         18                 MR. BAPTISTE: Yes, I lost my son

         19  Gerard Baptiste on that day, on that 9/11 tragedy,

         20  and I support the Skyscraper Safety Campaign

         21  recommendation fully because I understand if those

         22  codes were in effect at that time, and also

         23  enforced, my son would probably be alive today.

         24                 So, I urge you to do your utmost to

         25  get those recommendations passed, to prevent a
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          2  tragedy like that to happen again.

          3                 Also, having no relatives, no

          4  fathers, no mothers, like Sally and I and others

          5  going through what we are going through today. Thank

          6  you very much.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you.

          8                 MS. GABRIELLE: Good afternoon. My

          9  name is Monica Gabrielle, I am co-chair of the

         10  Skyscraper Safety Campaign. I was going to write a

         11  lengthy statement reiterating yet again the reasons

         12  for the need for a model code in New York City, and

         13  urge you to adopt the recommendations put forth by

         14  the World Trade Center Task Force. Instead, I opted

         15  for brevity because, frankly, you all know that

         16  adopting these recommendations is the right thing to

         17  do.

         18                 Allow me to take this opportunity

         19  instead to remind you, it is only the beginning.

         20  There are recommendations due from the NIST

         21  (phonetic) investigation, the 9/11 Independent

         22  Commission and other studies. I urge you to make

         23  provisions that will enable the fast tracking of

         24  these upcoming recommendations into New York City

         25  Building and Fire Codes, as well.
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          2                 Allow me to take this opportunity to

          3  remind you there is still the unmistakable need to

          4  adopt a model Fire Code to accompany a model

          5  Building Code, one without the other is only a job

          6  half done.

          7                 I urge you to make this your next

          8  priority. The old Gray Mare, the New York City Fire

          9  Code, is still in the stable. Let's at least get her

         10  to the starting gate so we can send her galloping

         11  into the 21st century.

         12                 The horrible events of September 11th

         13  forced the light to shine on what was already a

         14  system in need of reform. Let the deadly mistake,

         15  which contributed to the death of almost 3,000

         16  people force us to do what is necessary.

         17                 Please do not allow 15 years to go by

         18  before even the most basic recommendation, the

         19  installation of fire sprinklers, is completed.

         20                 Please do not allow economic factors

         21  or politics to dictate the adoption of these

         22  essential life safety reforms.

         23                 In closing, I would like to applaud

         24  Patricia Lancaster and the Department of Buildings,

         25  the Mayor's World Trade Center Task Force, and all
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          2  those who have worked so tirelessly to put together

          3  these recommendations. Let us adopt them into our

          4  codes without delay and leave a living legacy for my

          5  husband and all the other victims. Do not allow

          6  their deaths to have been in vain. Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you

          8  very much. I couldn't agree with you more about the

          9  Fire Code. That does not come under our

         10  jurisdiction. It's in Yvette Clarke's Committee, and

         11  I'm sure that they've already had discussions and

         12  we'll be working on it.

         13                 Council Member Fidler, you have a

         14  question?

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Yes, thank

         16  you, Madam Chairwoman.

         17                 I think I would be remiss if I didn't

         18  start by extending my condolences to each of you,

         19  I'm sure for all of my colleagues, as well, it may

         20  be over two years but we certainly are just as

         21  mindful of your pain today as we were then, and

         22  certainly can't forget the circumstances that led to

         23  it, contributed to it.

         24                 I am both educated and shocked to

         25  hear your testimony about the Port Authority, the
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          2  fact that they are not subject to our jurisdiction.

          3  And I would ask you to further enlighten me as to

          4  whether or not that is a subject of state law, or

          5  whether it is something that this Council has any

          6  power over?

          7                 MS. REGENHARD: Well, it is a very

          8  tangled web, but basically it is a subject of State

          9  law and, you know, as we speak, the Skyscraper

         10  Safety Campaign is working with some state elected

         11  officials to change the Charter, State Senators and

         12  Assembly people from both New York and New Jersey,

         13  because the families of the victims call the Port

         14  Authority a bi-state monster, but I guess the more

         15  politically correct term would be, you know, it's a

         16  bi-state entity, which is unique and bizarre.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Would an act

         18  of the New York State Legislature be sufficient to

         19  subject the Port Authority to jurisdiction of New

         20  York or does New Jersey Legislature have to act as

         21  well?

         22                 MS. REGENHARD: Unfortunately, we need

         23  both, and we're currently working with New York and

         24  New Jersey legislators to have a combined bill that

         25  would be passed in both states.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Has the

          3  legislation been filed in the New York Legislature

          4  yet?

          5                 MS. REGENARD: I'm not sure of that.

          6  If it hasn't been filed, it's very close to that

          7  point, and, you know, certainly we're reaching out

          8  to all the elected officials to really support it.

          9                 We have letters from Congressmen,

         10  from both New York and New Jersey, who have written

         11  to the Port Authority, who have written to Governor

         12  Pataki, who have asked them to put themselves under

         13  the legal jurisdiction of New York City Building and

         14  Fire Codes. The answer that they received is, quote,

         15  they not only comply but they far exceed. This is

         16  the standard answer, which sounds like it's saying

         17  something but there is no legal jurisdiction and

         18  oversight, you know, to what they --

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Every one of

         20  my colleagues was shaking their head vigorously as

         21  you were saying if they meet or exceed the code, why

         22  would they object to being subject to it, and to the

         23  enforcement rules for it, it makes absolute logical

         24  sense to me and would suggest to me that they

         25  probably don't meet the code, which is why they
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          2  don't want to be subject to it.

          3                 I would ask that as soon as a piece

          4  of legislation is filed in Albany, that you get a

          5  copy of it to me. I would appreciate that. And I

          6  would hope, Madam Chairperson, that this Council

          7  would adopt a resolution calling upon the

          8  Legislature to pass such a law as expeditiously as

          9  possible, and my colleagues in New Jersey do the

         10  same.

         11                 You know, we often say that if we

         12  don't learn from history, you know, shame on us, and

         13  this would seem to be just an incredibly easy

         14  sensible, logical thing to do, and we want to jump

         15  on that bandwagon, because I am frankly shocked it's

         16  not the case already.

         17                 MS. REGENHARD: All right. Thank you

         18  very much. Thank you.

         19                 And I'd also like to say that you

         20  have a wonderful opportunity for this City Council

         21  of 2004, you know, under the leadership of Mr.

         22  Miller, your Committee, to really leave a true

         23  legacy for history for what you're doing, and I want

         24  to thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: I'm sorry.
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          2  You also have to be the referee sort of, you know,

          3  who is speaking next.

          4                 Council Member Katz. And we've also

          5  been joined by Council Member Gale Brewer.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Actually,

          7  Councilman Fidler took what I thought was probably

          8  one of the more surprising portions of your

          9  testimony. But I have a question just on that same

         10  level.

         11                 Has the Skyscraper Safety Campaign

         12  met with the Port Authority?

         13                 Let me put it another way. Has the

         14  Port Authority met with the Skyscraper Safety

         15  Campaign?

         16                 MS. REGENHARD: Yes, we did meet with

         17  them last year. We announced that our intention to

         18  file a lawsuit in New York Supreme Court, New York

         19  State Supreme Court, to force them to rebuild the

         20  World Trade Center under legal jurisdiction of New

         21  York City Building and Fire Codes.

         22                 Upon our announcement they did ask to

         23  meet with us. We did meet with them and basically,

         24  you know, I told them I want to put the cards on the

         25  table, you know, let's not waste time, will you
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          2  rebuild the new World Trade Center under the legal

          3  jurisdiction of New York City Building and Fire

          4  Code? The answer was no.

          5                 We then cut off our discussions with

          6  them. We filed our lawsuit on behalf of the families

          7  of the victims, the Uniformed Firefighters Officers

          8  Association, two Lower Manhattan civic groups and

          9  two Congressmen.

         10                 Unfortunately we were not successful

         11  in that lawsuit, and that's why we turned to the

         12  changing the law enacting legislation, and we will

         13  not give up until we see -- we do not believe that

         14  any building should be above the law of the City,

         15  especially in light of 9/11.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: It might be

         17  something without distinction, I'm not sure what the

         18  term is, but not wanting to be under the

         19  jurisdiction of New York City is different than not

         20  adhering to the standards of the New York City

         21  Building Code, so my question is: I hear you met

         22  with them, my question is do you know, have they

         23  publicly said that they adhere to the standards of

         24  the New York City --

         25                 MS. GABRIELLE: They continue to say
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          2  they meet and exceed for the last 30 years whatever

          3  codes they meet or exceed on the World Trade Center.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Okay.

          5                 MS. GABRIELLE: To my knowledge, I

          6  have yet to see any codes that they meet or exceed,

          7  and what standard of meeting and exceeding are they

          8  using if they used bar joist construction on the

          9  former World Trade Center, which was not allowed.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Which is not

         11  allowed in New York City standards.

         12                 MS. GABRIELLE: No. And it was not

         13  allowed, no one else could build a construction of

         14  that type when they were building.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Madam Chair, did

         16  we request Port Authority here today?

         17                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Okay, now

         18  I'll say what I have to say.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Yes.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: I am

         21  surprised that members of my Committee are surprised

         22  that the Port Authority basically does their own

         23  thing. We have had several hearings --

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: I'm not sure

         25  that that's a surprising part. I think what I was
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          2  actually a little surprised at was just the

          3  standards. As Chair of Land Use I know that the Port

          4  Authority does their own thing.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: These were

          6  discussed at at least two hearings that we had. One

          7  was the hearing that we had on 9/11, and the other

          8  one was a joint committee we had with Council Member

          9  Gerson, Lower Manhattan. That was on high

         10  performance building construction, and this was

         11  discussed at length and we had the same kinds of

         12  reactions from people.

         13                 So, it isn't something that's new.

         14  And we're all very aware of it.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Right. So, again

         16  I ask the question. Was Port Authority invited and

         17  didn't show up, or did we not invite them today, or

         18  do we not them anymore to the hearings?

         19                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: We did not

         20  invite them today.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: We didn't invite

         22  them today.

         23                 MS. REGENHARD: You know, I'd be

         24  surprised if there is no one from the Port

         25  Authority. They usually follow us around. I guess
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          2  they're interested in our endeavors, you know. And

          3  we welcome them because everything that we say is

          4  out in the open, a matter of public record. We're

          5  always willing to work with everyone.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Right.

          7                 I would love, by the way, since I do

          8  Chair the Land Use Committee I deal with the Port

          9  Authority quite a bit, especially on this topic. It

         10  has been a great bone of contention, in the past

         11  that those 16 acres of land, obviously the Land Use

         12  Committee had no authority over and the Port

         13  Authority was using their own standards and their

         14  own rules and their own regulations, and their own

         15  way of getting the property, if there's any sort of

         16  public statements, I'll have my staff look it up as

         17  well, that you have and you can forward to us, that

         18  the Port Authority has said that they adhere to the

         19  standards of the New York State Building Code, I

         20  would really love to have that.

         21                 And, again, I'll have my staff do the

         22  search also, but if you happen to have that

         23  available, that would be great.

         24                 MS. REGENHARD: And I would just

         25  finish by saying, and I think we'd both say the same
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          2  thing, they consistently say they meet or exceed

          3  with no powers of oversight and enforcement it's

          4  meaningless, it's meaningless.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Right. Thank

          6  you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: I've been

          8  checking with my staff, they were invited to the

          9  hearing we had with Lower Manhattan, and obviously

         10  did not appear.

         11                 Again, you said it correctly, I mean

         12  why should they appear when we have no jurisdiction

         13  over them and basically to them I guess it's a waste

         14  to their time.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you,

         17  ladies and gentlemen.

         18                 MS. REGENHARD: Thank you all very

         19  much for your wonderful work.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you.

         21                 We have Robert Hackworth out there?

         22  Okay. I'm looking at some, because some of you have

         23  like time constraints. Paul Sapsford. We'll just do

         24  the two of you because it looks like you're going to

         25  have some help up there.
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          2                 Okay, whoever wants to start.

          3                 MR. HACKWORTH: Thank you, Madam

          4  Provenzano, and other members of the Council. My

          5  name is Robert Hackworth, I represent the Steel

          6  Joist Institute in Myrtle Beach, South Carolina.

          7                 In reference to some of the remarks

          8  that were just made, I have some great indifference

          9  to those.

         10                 Let me give you a little history, if

         11  I may, of the Steel Joist Institute. It is the

         12  governing body for the manufacturer of steel joists

         13  which are defined in the construction industry as

         14  open web steel joists.

         15                 These members are used for the direct

         16  support of floor and roof deck materials. The SJI is

         17  a trade organization comprised of 18 member

         18  companies operating 39 manufacturing plants

         19  throughout the United States, Canada and Mexico that

         20  produce 98 percent of all steel joists used in the

         21  United States.

         22                 Steel joists have been utilized in

         23  building construction since the early 1900s. The

         24  SJI, a not-for-profit organization since 1928, was

         25  created for the specific purpose of organizing the
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          2  steel joist industry and to provide a means of

          3  developing standardized specifications and load

          4  tables for use by the specifying public.

          5                 Up to that time there were no

          6  standards upon which the Building Code Authorities

          7  could rely.

          8                 Once these standards were

          9  established, the SJI, in conjunction with the

         10  American Institute of Steel Construction, AISC,

         11  facilitated the adoption of the SJI specifications

         12  and load tables by numerous building code

         13  authorities throughout the United States.

         14                 In 1996, the SJI became a member of

         15  the American National Standards Institute, ANSI, and

         16  in 2001, the SJI specification and load tables were

         17  adopted and approved as American national standards.

         18  Those numbers are ANSI/SJI-K-1.0, SJI-LH/DLH-1.0,

         19  and ANSI/SJI-JG-1.0.

         20                 Membership in the SJI is attained

         21  only after a thorough application process. All

         22  prospective numbers must submit their design

         23  criteria for review and verification by the

         24  Institute's consulting engineer.

         25                 In addition, steel joists must
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          2  undergo load testing and certification to their

          3  strength and conformance to SJI specification and

          4  load tables.

          5                 The applicant's plant is then

          6  inspected by an independent inspection agency that

          7  certifies the applicant's ability, quality control

          8  and expertise to produce a product as specified.

          9                 After being accepted as a member into

         10  the Institute, this same facility is again inspected

         11  on an annual basis for the next two years.

         12                 Each of the 39 members' fabricating

         13  facilities is inspected on a biannual basis to

         14  certify compliance with the specifications of the

         15  SJI.

         16                 Over the years, the Institute has

         17  spent hundreds of thousands of dollars in product

         18  research to make the use of steel joists a safe and

         19  economical construction product.

         20                 In 1987, SJI and Armstrong World

         21  Industries, collaborated to conduct research on fire

         22  resistant assemblies. Following this research, SJI

         23  and Armstrong submitted assemblies to the

         24  Underwriters Laboratories for testing of roof and

         25  ceiling assemblies for UL certification.
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          2                 Currently, there are over 200 fire

          3  rated assemblies containing steel joists granted UL

          4  fire ratings from one hour up to four hours. The

          5  attached exhibit A has all these listed.

          6                 The industry and UL have demonstrated

          7  that open web steel joists included in a properly

          8  designed and constructed fire rated assembly will

          9  provide a safe and adequate system.

         10                 The Steel Joist Institute is here

         11  today to urge this Council not to amend the

         12  administrative code of the City of New York in

         13  relation to building safety, File Intro 126,

         14  specifically paragraph 18, Subdivision (c) of

         15  section 27-614, paragraph (c), Open web steel

         16  joists, Reference RS 10-1 (sic), wherein the

         17  commissioner shall amend RS 10-7 to establish

         18  minimum acceptable fireproofing methods for open web

         19  steel joists and to redefine the limitations or

         20  restrictions on the buildings or occupancies in

         21  which the use of open web steel joists shall be

         22  permitted, and in Section 25, the paragraph

         23  beginning with the word "Modifications" of the

         24  building reference standard RS 10-7 is amended to

         25  read as follows: Open web joists are prohibited in
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          2  highrise building construction in all occupancy

          3  groups, except J-2 and J-3.

          4                 The recommended amendment RS 10-7 is

          5  arbitrary and capricious and without foundation.

          6  Based on the extensive investigation conducted into

          7  the collapse of the World Trade Center towers, there

          8  is not one scintilla of evidence to support that

          9  open web steel joist contributed to the collapse.

         10                 In all reports that we have read, the

         11  redundancy of the steel design allowed for the safe

         12  passage of many people.

         13                 In reports which we have read they

         14  suggest that the fire resistant materials may have

         15  been improperly applied or maintained through

         16  failure to follow manufacturer's recommendation in

         17  application or maintenance.

         18                 Among the principal purposes of a

         19  building code program is to establish safe and

         20  proper use of construction product.

         21                 One of the most important

         22  requirements of such a program is to provide for

         23  sound, engineering design and construction, while

         24  providing adequate fire resistive capabilities.

         25  Certain prevailing design codes are appropriate when
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          2  all trades comply.

          3                 It is our understanding, based on the

          4  investigative reports, the open web trusses utilized

          5  at the World Trade Center towers were not designed

          6  or manufactured in accordance with the then existing

          7  SJI Specifications and Load Tables. They were not

          8  steel open web joists but special trusses.

          9                 Even though the Steel Joist Institute

         10  is the standards writing body for the industry,

         11  neither the Institute nor any of its members have

         12  been given the opportunity to examine any of the

         13  evidence or to provide any information leading to

         14  the investigative reports and their conclusions.

         15                 Nor has the Institute or any of its

         16  members been permitted to participate in this

         17  investigation.

         18                 The Institute and its members have

         19  been denied access or participation in the NIST

         20  investigation, all of which would seem to be a

         21  violation of fundamental due process when this City

         22  Council is considering the ban on the use of steel

         23  joist industry products in the City in buildings.

         24                 The treatment of the industry in this

         25  entire investigative process is clear. The steel
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          2  joist industry is being made the scapegoat for this

          3  tragedy, and made victim of a proposal to ban the

          4  use of steel joist industry products, without

          5  necessary facts to support such a proposal.

          6                 The Institute urges this Council to

          7  decline to adopt this proposed amendment to the

          8  Administrative Code.

          9                 Given our opposition to the proposed

         10  amendment to the Administrative Code, the Institute

         11  and the industry stand prepared to assist the City

         12  in any way to discover the cause or the causes of

         13  the collapse of the World Trade Center.

         14                 This is clearly evident by our

         15  continued efforts to meet with the Department of

         16  Buildings.

         17                 In our second meeting with the New

         18  York Department of Buildings in January of this

         19  year, we proposed limiting the temporary ban on open

         20  web steel joists in highrise construction to only

         21  those existing fire rated assemblies utilizing

         22  sprayed-on fireproofing with steel joists. It should

         23  be noted that the World Trade Center Task Force's

         24  recommendations outlined their concerns with the use

         25  of sprayed-on fireproofing and open web steel joists
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          2  and not any other fire rated assemblies.

          3                 If the existing fire rated assemblies

          4  that utilize open web steel joists and a finished

          5  ceiling could be used, this would prevent an unfair

          6  ban on open web steel joists considering there is no

          7  concern for this type of construction.

          8                 Open web steel joists in highrise

          9  construction could then be specified while

         10  preventing the use of sprayed-on fire proofing with

         11  steel joists until the fire resistance research

         12  currently being undertaken by NIST can be completed

         13  and their recommendations submitted to the New York

         14  City Department of Buildings.

         15                 The Institute renews its commitment

         16  to continue to be available to the City to assist in

         17  improvement of its Building Code in order to achieve

         18  safe and proper use of the steel joist industry

         19  products in the construction of the buildings within

         20  the City.

         21                 I might add at this point that the

         22  time has come to declare a halt to the steel joist

         23  bashing similar to what I heard today.

         24                 The steel joists have proven to be a

         25  high quality product with an astonishing low failure
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          2  rate to be put in the category of taking the open

          3  web trusses that were in the World Trade Center and

          4  saying that they are open web steel joists is

          5  incorrect.

          6                 Thank you very much.

          7                 MR. SAPSFORD: Madam Chair, I

          8  understand at some point during my testimony the

          9  lights might go down, just to demonstrate the

         10  efficacy of photoluminescent products. If that

         11  happens, I urge the Committee and other members,

         12  other people here today, not to be too scared. We do

         13  believe that the lights will come back up again

         14  shortly.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Please bring

         16  your mic a little closer.

         17                 Is your light off?

         18                 MR. SAPSFORD: It's on.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Okay.

         20                 MR. SAPSFORD: Good afternoon, and

         21  thank you for letting us comment on the local law to

         22  amend the administrative code for New York City as

         23  it relates to building safety.

         24                 We are here today because of our

         25  extensive background and our expertise in the
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          2  subject of supplemental emergency egress systems.

          3                 I am Paul Sapsford, CEO of Ecoglo,

          4  Ltd, a New Zealand company with strong ties to the

          5  United States. Since the 1990s we have been engaged

          6  in the research and development of photoluminescent

          7  products, such as the ones that we have circulated

          8  to you today.

          9                 And as I'm holding up --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Would you

         11  state your name?

         12                 MR. SAPSFORD: Paul Sapsford.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Okay.

         14                 MR. SAPSFORD: Can we turn those

         15  lights down now?

         16                 I think that you have little pieces

         17  that you may have even been able to examine under

         18  your desk, but as you can see from the product I'm

         19  holding up from the sign, which you'd be aware of

         20  from every residential building, these products are

         21  built to glow and to glow for long periods of time.

         22                 Ecoglo has developed our own patented

         23  technology that creates a range of long-lasting

         24  path-finding products that absorb overhead light and

         25  glow in the dark. Our products outline stairways
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          2  with light, helping people find their way out of

          3  buildings, in any light conditions, whether light

          4  daylight or pitch black. We also make signage that

          5  can be custom designed whenever there is a need for

          6  illumination without electricity.

          7                 Our patented glow-in-the-dark pigment

          8  is baked into an aluminum material, which enables

          9  people to walk on it day-after-day, year-after-year.

         10                 It receives power from normal

         11  overhead light so it continually recharges and can

         12  be used over and over again.

         13                 Our product costs only pennies per

         14  square foot, is ideal for new construction and

         15  easily retrofitted into existing buildings and any

         16  common areas where pathways need to be illuminated

         17  in emergencies.

         18                 Currently, our systems are installed

         19  in stadiums, arenas, residential and commercial

         20  buildings and public places throughout the world and

         21  we have recently installed our system in a building

         22  here in New York owned and managed by Rudin

         23  Management at No. 40 West 86th Street.

         24                 We are experts on egress safety and

         25  have done extensive research to create a unique
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          2  product - a product that will glow for approximately

          3  60 yours, a product that is durable and designed to

          4  last the life of the building. You don't need

          5  electricity, you don't need lightbulbs and it only

          6  needs to be cleaned to work.

          7                 We want to offer our knowledge and

          8  support as you consider amending the local law

          9  regarding New York's building safety administrative

         10  code.

         11                 Following the terrorist attacks of

         12  September 11th, as New Zealanders and admirers of

         13  your country, our hearts went out to all of the

         14  people in the New York area who suffered losses

         15  themselves or of their loved ones. As people

         16  involved in egress safety, we recognized that the

         17  attacks on the twin towers graphically showed just

         18  how important it is to be able to leave and enter

         19  buildings quickly and safely.

         20                 Also relevant, the power outage in

         21  August of last year, which affected more than 50

         22  million Americans in the Northeast, will long be

         23  remembered by those who were stuck in elevators,

         24  airports, subways, residential and commercial

         25  buildings and who were forced to find their way up
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          2  and down endless flights of stairs in the dark using

          3  such items as a cell phone light to light the way.

          4                 As highlighted by the recent fire in

          5  Chicago, trying to maneuver down a stairwell in the

          6  pitch black when emergency backup lighting has been

          7  exhausted is at best unpleasant; at worst, it is

          8  truly dangerous. It doesn't have to happen.

          9                 If the Council can ensure that

         10  changes strengthening New York City regulations,

         11  standards and codes are adequately addressed and

         12  implemented, the benefits of these improvements will

         13  not only be immense but will be cost effective and

         14  will literally save lives.

         15                 Simply put, New York has a critical

         16  need for reliable, effective back-up lighting for

         17  emergencies. As one who specializes in emergency

         18  egress solutions throughout the world, I want you to

         19  know that the whole world is watching what New York

         20  will be doing with regards to safety and how the

         21  code will be defined.

         22                 New York has always been a leader.

         23  You not only have access to world leading

         24  technology, you have the ability to be the world

         25  leader in safety solutions by implementing ways to
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          2  keep New Yorkers safer in an emergency.

          3                 The window of opportunity is today.

          4  Your actions today will secure our safety tomorrow.

          5  We are challenged with the task to make New York the

          6  leader in building safety and egress. In the

          7  interest of New Yorkers and of visitors to this

          8  great city, we need to make sure that if another

          9  emergency occurs, we have done everything in our

         10  power to ensure that our friends and families are

         11  safe.

         12                 We support Council Member Provenzano

         13  and members of the Committee on Housing and

         14  Buildings to amend the administrative code of the

         15  City of New York in relation to building safety. We

         16  are here to help.

         17                 Madam Chair, I've also circulated

         18  with my testimony a list of commonly asked questions

         19  and answers to those for the benefit of the

         20  Committee members.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: I have one

         22  question. Did you say that it keeps its glow, or

         23  energy, for 60 hours?

         24                 MR. SAPSFORD: Roughly 60 hours,

         25  that's the rate. Obviously it requires some charging
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          2  to do that.

          3                 I think the benefit that comes from

          4  that is that, as we saw in the blackout, people with

          5  emergency electrical systems which we support, we

          6  support the work of this legislation, to upgrade it,

          7  are able to get out of buildings, but in a

          8  supplemental terrorist attack or in a situation

          9  where people need to get back into their buildings,

         10  as happened in the blackout when people returned to

         11  their residences, this product will be glowing and

         12  will glow for days after the initial loss of power.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: So what kind

         14  of initial charge would it need to get it up to

         15  speed, to 60 hours?

         16                 MR. SAPSFORD: Generally a small burst

         17  of daylight or some reasonable light. Light in

         18  stairwells in New York may not enable it to glow for

         19  those full 60 hours, but we believe we have a

         20  technical specification that will make buildings

         21  extremely safe, far safer than they are in New York

         22  today, using the emergency lighting that is

         23  available by code in New York stairways.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Oh, okay.

         25  Burst of light is for how long? An hour?
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          2                 MR. SAPSFORD: That burst of sunlight?

          3  As little as five seconds. That intends entirely on

          4  how bright the sunlight is. Unfortunately, I can't

          5  give you a definitive answer.

          6                 Good sunlight like we have in New

          7  Zealand and I have seen in New York previously, it's

          8  five seconds.

          9                 Normal lighting, lighting in this

         10  room, may be three minutes to five minutes.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Okay, so

         12  let's say we have a hallway in a high-rise building

         13  that is 20, 30 stories high, the hallways are fairly

         14  well lit and these strips are in that hallway, I

         15  don't know, they could be on the stairs, they could

         16  be on the sides, wherever, with the normal light

         17  from that hallway, that would keep these going for

         18  how long, if there was a blackout?

         19                 MR. SAPSFORD: I don't want to be too

         20  definitive with that because I don't know those

         21  levels of light.

         22                 What's important in this situation,

         23  where this is a supplemental system, in other words

         24  there is an electrical emergency lighting that is

         25  going to go on before the photoluminescent system
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          2  kicks in, it's important that the system be charged,

          3  but we do our testing and our specification of the

          4  system, based on the amount of light that is

          5  available from the emergency lighting system. Now,

          6  that's set by code, but it's set at a lot lower than

          7  bright sunlight. We believe that we can give a

          8  system that is safe for eight hours, the eight hours

          9  that is defined in the bill, that is safe in all

         10  kinds of light, not just pitch black, because a lot

         11  of photoluminescent people will tell you they can

         12  see, you can see their stuff in pitch black, but

         13  also in very low levels of light where an emergency

         14  light may be glowing three or four stories above the

         15  area where you're trying to walk.

         16                 So, we have a lot of offer from the

         17  research that we've done with the University of

         18  Iowa, amongst other research bodies in this

         19  organization and throughout the world, in being able

         20  to set a technical standard that is the safest

         21  possible for New Yorkers, the safest possible using

         22  the most modern technology.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Council

         24  Member Oddo.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Madam Chair?
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Okay, go

          3  ahead.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: I actually

          5  have questions for both witnesses.

          6                 If Mr. Hackworth would please rejoin

          7  us, I would appreciate it.

          8                 Mr. Hackworth, I appreciate the pain

          9  that your industry must feel to see a proposed

         10  regulation like this. On the second page of your

         11  testimony you said "based on the extensive

         12  investigation conducted in the collapse of the World

         13  Trade Center Towers, there is not one scintilla of

         14  evidence to support the open web steel joist

         15  contributed to this collapse.  In all reports that

         16  we have read, the redundancy of the steel design

         17  allowed for the safe passage of many people."

         18                 I have to tell you that sitting here,

         19  having seen video of those buildings collapse, those

         20  words are almost chilling. And to suggest that on

         21  one hand we should applaud the design, the steel

         22  design of this building for allowing the safe

         23  passage of many people, and then to see these

         24  buildings collapse like, you know, jello, is

         25  something that is just not consistent to me.
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          2                 And, so, I'm concerned. You know, you

          3  seem to feel as if, I mean you used the term

          4  scapegoat, so why do you think the Buildings

          5  Department and the Task Force is proposing the

          6  elimination of this kind of construction? I mean,

          7  you're making an incredibly serious charge saying

          8  there's not any basis whatsoever for coming to this

          9  conclusion and making this proposal, and yet every

         10  one of us who has seen those buildings collapse, you

         11  know, we'd like to be really sure that you're right,

         12  if we're going to agree with you, because, frankly,

         13  I feel the pain of the people who died in the

         14  buildings, more than I feel the pain by the steel

         15  joist industry.

         16                 MR. HACKWORTH: Mr. Fidler, I agree

         17  with you as far as the pain aspect. I was involved

         18  in the construction of the World Trade Center back

         19  in the sixties, so I know what was there. The

         20  reports that have been issued have not come clear

         21  yet as to why the Trade Center -- as to why they

         22  collapsed. They're still looking at a progressive

         23  collapse. But the Trade Centers were not designed

         24  for what happened to them. The Trade Center was

         25  designed for a plane at take off, with the minimum
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          2  speed hitting there, and it would have survived

          3  that. But there is no construction technique that

          4  would have survived what took place there. But to

          5  say right off the bat that open web steel joists

          6  were the contributing factor to the collapse of the

          7  World Trade Center has not been proven yet.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: So, then what

          9  was? I mean, I'll allow speculation, but what was?

         10                 MR. HACKWORTH: Indications are that

         11  there were some column failures. Half the columns

         12  were taken out of a single floor. It's hard for a

         13  building to stand up without the columns. But the

         14  construction technique that was used in what they

         15  call a perimeter-braced frame, or it was all in the

         16  perimeter of the building, and when you took a plane

         17  flying through there and penetrating that full

         18  perimeter, you took a lot of the strength of the

         19  building out, and it will start to expand when the

         20  heat is there. The fireproofing has been shown to

         21  maybe be lacking in certain areas. That causes a

         22  consideration of fire getting underneath

         23  fireproofing and running down the entire length of

         24  the beam and therefore contributing to the

         25  overheating of the beam -- of the joist, of the
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          2  beam, or whatever the construction method is.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: What I don't

          4  understand is, what do you think the motivation of

          5  the Task Force to make this recommendation is? I

          6  mean, obviously some people must see some

          7  contributing cause.

          8                 MR. HACKWORTH: You have to find any

          9  construction basis for the statements that have been

         10  made.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: So then what

         12  basis have you found?

         13                 MR. HACKWORTH: I feel like that they

         14  are led by empathy, or by the firefighters have come

         15  in and said that we don't like steel joists,

         16  therefore they should be barred from the

         17  construction of --

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: And so the

         19  firefighters are being arbitrary and capricious and

         20  picking on steel joists?

         21                 MR. HACKWORTH: I think as a group, I

         22  think they have, yes.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Why?

         24                 MR. HACKWORTH: Because I think they

         25  do not like walking on steel joists. Therefore, they
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          2  feel like it's an unsafe product in their mind, but

          3  it's not construction related, it's not construction

          4  based.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: So then this

          6  entire motivation is regulated by a group of

          7  disgruntled firefighters, who for reasons other than

          8  safety don't like steel joists; that's the essence

          9  of what you're saying.

         10                 MR. HACKWORTH: The essence of what

         11  I'm saying, we have not been invited to participate

         12  in any of this at all.

         13                 We're the professionals. The first

         14  time we have not been asked to be on any committee,

         15  we have asked the Department of Buildings on

         16  numerous occasions, let us take part in this. No one

         17  will give us a chance to even voice an opinion,

         18  we're supposed to be the experts.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Well, it's a

         20  heck of a charge. I, frankly, as I'm sure most of

         21  the people, and I'm sure you do as well, have a

         22  great deal of sympathy for firefighters, and to

         23  suggest that they have some motivation and that

         24  they're the factor in this proposed regulation,

         25  which is quite significant regulation, you know,
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          2  seems to me to be an awesome charge to be leveling.

          3                 You know, I want to be fair to you,

          4  and you said you had some role in the construction

          5  of this building and I want to, you know, I

          6  personally, you know, I hold the people who flew the

          7  planes into the building responsible for what

          8  happened, so I'm not blaming anybody, and I don't

          9  think any sane human being would have foreseen in

         10  1960 that some barbarians would do what they did,

         11  all right? And plan for it. But how we have the

         12  benefit of knowing that there are such people and

         13  that they will do such things, and I think we need

         14  to learn from that and, frankly, I wouldn't impugn

         15  the motivation of our firefighters in the way that

         16  you have, or the Buildings Department or the Task

         17  Force. You know, I mean, obviously I'd like to know,

         18  I mean I'm sorry the Commissioner is not here, I can

         19  ask her to specifically respond to that allegation,

         20  but, you know, frankly, doing nothing because we

         21  can't prove by preponderance of the evidence or

         22  beyond a reasonable doubt what contributed to the

         23  collapse of the towers, is not an acceptable

         24  alternative to me and hopefully not to this

         25  Committee, and, you know, we don't ever want to see
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          2  buildings collapse the way they did.

          3                 MR. HACKWORTH: We don't either. And

          4  the thing that everyone needs to remember, though,

          5  is that the product that was in the World Trade

          6  Center is not an open web steel joist. It was not

          7  designed or underwritten by the Steel Joist

          8  Institute. It was a proprietary product. She

          9  indicated that a composite joist, there is no

         10  current specification on composite joist, but this

         11  was a special product that is no longer made, and it

         12  does not even show the configuration of an open web

         13  steel joist today.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: And I'm not

         15  even going to pretend to know the difference between

         16  an open web steel joist and a composite joist. And I

         17  can assure you, Mr. Hackworth, you know, there will

         18  be a subsequent hearing on this, and I will ask the

         19  Buildings Commissioner what her understanding is as

         20  to why we've come to this conclusion. But I think

         21  the motivation you suggested is unseemly.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Okay, do you

         23  have questions?

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: I have a

         25  question for Mr. Sapsford as well, and you know,
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          2  just as Mr. Hackworth represents an industry,

          3  someone representing -- your competitor has handed

          4  us information and I just want to read one short

          5  paragraph from it.

          6                 "EL" -- meaning electroluminescence

          7  -- "is capable of being driven at 25 foot lamberts

          8  which is 34 times brighter than the one-minute

          9  measurement of the brightest photoluminescent

         10  product under the best conditions. For egress

         11  applications, the minimum brightness of EL under any

         12  condition will be five foot lamberts or over 17,000

         13  mili-candelas (phonetic) per square meter. Thus at

         14  ten minutes, EL is over 100 times brighter than the

         15  best photoluminescent product at one hour, it is 600

         16  times brighter and at eight hours it will be over

         17  3,700 times brighter.

         18                 In practicality, the lower light

         19  levels of EL material can only be seen when a person

         20  stays in darkness for the whole time and let's the

         21  eye acclimate to the darkness. The human eye can do

         22  amazing things with light sensitivity, but in

         23  emergencies, firefighters and other personnel may be

         24  in and out of a building and will not have the

         25  luxury of waiting for their eyes to acclimate to the
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          2  darkness."

          3                 Do you agree? Disagree? Are they

          4  wrong?

          5                 MR. SAPSFORD: I think that their

          6  specifications are correct. Their product is a lot

          7  brighter than ours, but I defer to the Commissioner,

          8  as she said earlier, if there's no electricity going

          9  to their product, it works as good as the lights do

         10  when there's no electricity going to them.

         11                 So, electroluminescence is fed with

         12  electrical power, it may be on back-up power, it may

         13  be on battery, but all of the codes that I'm aware

         14  of in North America and around the world, specify

         15  that these products only last for a certain period

         16  of time, the battery only lasts for a certain period

         17  of time, the generator only lasts for a certain

         18  period of time.

         19                 And what we're talking about here,

         20  the system, is a supplemental system that actually

         21  kicks in once the electricity is filed. This is a no

         22  electricity required system.

         23                 Now, the arguments about the

         24  visibility and so on, there is a certain level of

         25  light at which you don't need to get any brighter to
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          2  see it, the questions actually come at the level of

          3  light below which people slow down moving down

          4  stairways. The safety of a stairway, the safety of a

          5  building from an egress prospective is measured in

          6  terms of people movement, how quickly they move.

          7                 There's a certain level of light,

          8  which is well below these levels talked about, where

          9  people start to slow down, it's not pitch black, but

         10  it's slightly higher. The system we're proposing and

         11  look to work with the Department of Buildings to

         12  specify here, as part of this local law, is a system

         13  that for eight hours after the cessation of

         14  electrical lighting, the stairways will still be

         15  visible in any kinds of light, so people will still

         16  be able to find their way out.

         17                 The first ten or 15 seconds of

         18  darkness is when the eye adjusts most dramatically,

         19  effective 10,000 times. So saying that we have to

         20  wait for hours and hours to be able to see this

         21  product doesn't actually work in.

         22                 We intend to produce research that

         23  shows how these systems will work, how they will be

         24  visible for that period of eight hours after the

         25  electrical light goes out.
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          2                 So, I reiterate, electroluminescence

          3  is a fabulous product, as long as it has

          4  electricity. That's not what we're here to talk

          5  about today.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: I'm trying to

          7  understand your product then, doesn't your product

          8  require a blast of light to activate, and wouldn't

          9  that blast of light, certainly in dark areas, dark

         10  stairways be electric?

         11                 MR. SAPSFORD: That's right. But we

         12  anticipate that the electricity will be on the

         13  floor, the emergency, so by code all New York

         14  stairways and egress ways have lighting, electrical

         15  lighting in them by code, all of those stairways and

         16  egress ways have back-up lighting available to them.

         17  So, we anticipate, and I think the designers of this

         18  legislation anticipate, that there will be

         19  electrical light charging these materials up. It's

         20  what happens when that electrical light fails that

         21  we're most interested and how can we get people out

         22  to, or emergency services, for instance, in two

         23  buildings, if there's a major catastrophe in the

         24  City, people have evacuated buildings but emergency

         25  services still need to come back into them, and it
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          2  might be ten, 12 hours after the initial

          3  catastrophe, how are they going to do that? How will

          4  they find their way? People returning to their

          5  residences after the blackout using their cell phone

          6  lights to find their way upstairs.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Council

          8  Member Brewer.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Thank you.

         10                 I just want to pick up on the light

         11  issue. I represent the west side of Manhattan, and I

         12  know that the Rudins are always ahead of everybody,

         13  so I noted that you mentioned their building to

         14  their credit.

         15                 But in the blackout, because we have

         16  very large apartment buildings, many people climbed

         17  upstairs to see elderly relatives, and in many, many

         18  cases the lights were out, there was no back-up, et

         19  cetera. Obviously the buildings are not as well

         20  managed as the Rudin building.

         21                 So, my question, how would that work?

         22  You would have a building, for instance, that may or

         23  may not have, as it should, back-up for the lights,

         24  at what point would your product go into on-line,

         25  so-to-speak?
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          2                 MR. SAPSFORD: I'm not sure I

          3  understand completely the question.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Okay. The

          5  blackout takes place, you come into your building

          6  looking for your mother or elderly relative, you

          7  climb up the stairs, but it is a building that is

          8  not extremely well maintained, and that is

          9  unfortunately typical of many of our buildings, and

         10  there is no light at all, electrical light. There is

         11  no back-up, it was light perhaps but the electricity

         12  is off and there is no light.

         13                 So, I would assume that if your

         14  product was in play there, that it would exist. No?

         15  Okay.

         16                 MR. SAPSFORD: That assumption, if

         17  there is electrical light or any form of light in

         18  the stairway then the product will work.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Okay.

         20                 MR. SAPSFORD: The concept of the

         21  emergency lighting filing and so on is beyond our

         22  scope, but I think it's addressed in this

         23  legislation where all existing emergency lights need

         24  to have back-up power available.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: I'm asking
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          2  about residential, I know our bill talks about

          3  commercial, but the Rudin building, that you

          4  mention, is a residential building. It is not a

          5  commercial building. I wanted to understand, is that

          6  how that product would work? The lights should be

          7  out even in a residential or commercial, sometimes

          8  on the west side there's both, we have commercial

          9  and residential. So what I'm asking is that your

         10  product would be working even after the regular

         11  lights no longer work. I don't understand.

         12                 MR. SAPSFORD: The answer to your

         13  question is, yes, when the lights go out our product

         14  starts to work.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Okay.

         16                 MR. SAPSFORD: If there is no

         17  emergency lighting, it just starts to work a little

         18  earlier.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: That's what

         20  I'm asking.

         21                 MR. SAPSFORD: I might point out, this

         22  bill doesn't address residential buildings, but that

         23  our product and the concept of photoluminescence

         24  have been recognized by the International Building

         25  Code and the Associated Evaluation Service, the
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          2  first time that happened in a model code in North

          3  America we were extensively with them three to four

          4  years ago.

          5                 So, as the Commissioner said, as the

          6  International Building Code becomes adopted as the

          7  model code for New York City, we anticipate that

          8  products such as ours will spread into residential

          9  and other public areas.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Okay, thank

         11  you very much.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Council

         13  Member Oddo.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: I have a

         15  question for one of the witnesses, but I have a

         16  question for you and the staff. Just following up on

         17  what Council Member Fidler was asking about, if you

         18  go into the Commissioner's testimony, unless I

         19  missed it, there's one paragraph about composite bar

         20  joist floor systems, and it just says how the bill

         21  is imposing a temporary prohibition on the use of

         22  open web steel joist. And it says once further

         23  studies are completed, yadda yadda yadda. It doesn't

         24  give a rationale in her testimony, and I didn't hear

         25  any testimony from the Commissioner as to why that
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          2  decision was -- why that conclusion was reached or

          3  how we got there.

          4                 And after the exchange between the

          5  witness and Council Member Fidler, in the testimony,

          6  I'm interested as to know why and how we got there.

          7                 MS. NASSER: Terzah Nasser, Counsel to

          8  the Committee. I can't go into all of the whys as to

          9  how we got there. From the briefings that

         10  Commissioner Lancaster and her staff gave to,

         11  actually offered to the members, and Council Member

         12  Provenzano and staff sat through the briefings on

         13  more than one occasion, the concern has to do with

         14  the fireproofing of the open web steel joists and

         15  the, evidently the fireproofing, it's not something

         16  -- the Commissioner needs to develop technical

         17  standards and find out.

         18                 Do you want to respond? It's up to

         19  you. The Fire Department, you can come back to the

         20  mic. We need to record it.

         21                 We're going to get a brief response

         22  from the Chief of the Fire Department.

         23                 Identify yourself for the record,

         24  please.

         25                 CHIEF SAVAGE: Chief Savage, part of
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          2  the Task Force. We relied on the expertise of

          3  structural engineers brought in for that Committee

          4  who advised us against the use of the open web steel

          5  joist truss. The Fire Department was never happy

          6  with it, but we only had one representative, there

          7  are structural engineers that were brought into that

          8  task force advised us against the use of open web

          9  steel joists, and these were some of the greatest

         10  structural engineers in New York City.

         11                 If you look, it's in that list, these

         12  people who were on that Committee.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Madam Chair, I

         14  would want to know why, and I would want to know why

         15  not, because I'm taking the witness's position in

         16  this, but I think the record, it's important that it

         17  be stated why we reached this conclusion.

         18                 So far we've heard the opposition to

         19  it, and we've heard advocacy for it, but we haven't

         20  heard testimony, direct testimony as to why we

         21  reached the conclusion. I think the record needs to

         22  reflect that to support Council Member Fidler's

         23  position, which I agree with.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: And I would

         25  just point out, Madam Chairwoman, that the witness
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          2  used the terms "arbitrary and capricious," and for

          3  those of us who have been to law school, those are

          4  the buzz words for challenging a regulation in

          5  court, and I think at our next hearing it is

          6  essential that the record include not only the fact

          7  that experts recommended it, but why the experts

          8  recommended it, so that it's clear that it's not

          9  arbitrary and capricious, that there is a logical,

         10  rational basis for the regulation.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: So noted, and

         12  I did not go to law school.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: We apologize for

         14  being attorneys. We're attorneys and politicians, so

         15  everyone hates us.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Apology

         17  accepted.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: I have one

         19  question.

         20                 If folks are silly enough to go to

         21  Madison Square Garden and watch the hapless New York

         22  Rangers, they see within Madison Square Garden a

         23  product; is that your competitor's product, is that

         24  your product? Whose product is it?

         25                 MR. SAPSFORD: That would be our
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          2  product.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: And when was the

          4  product installed in the Garden?

          5                 MR. SAPSFORD: I think around three

          6  years ago.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: And in this

          8  industry, in this battle, are the photoluminescence

          9  folks, and the electroluminescence folks,

         10  competitors for the same market, or are there

         11  instances where electro -- you wouldn't be competing

         12  with them for a certain market? There's certain

         13  facilities, certain locations, that, you know, it's

         14  their bailiwick, or are you guys in the same,

         15  competing in the same group?

         16                 MR. SAPSFORD: We don't see ourselves

         17  in the same market. We're experts on egress and on

         18  safety.

         19                 Electroluminescence is commonly used

         20  to decorate the outside of buildings or structures

         21  in such a way as to use colors to make them look

         22  nice. It doesn't happen so much in Manhattan, but it

         23  happens a lot in Hong Kong.

         24                 The fundamental disadvantage of

         25  electroluminescence is it has a mean time before
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          2  failure of 1,500 hours. So, what I think your

          3  correspondents are trying to suggest is that we

          4  installed something into New York buildings that

          5  will fail after 1,500 hours, as opposed to a system

          6  that's been proved to last for 30 to 40 years, or

          7  effectively the lifetime of a building.

          8                 So, we're very much focused on

          9  egress, on safety, on people walking on our product

         10  day after day year after year, we're not kind of

         11  focused on decorating buildings, and I think that's

         12  where this industry is going, if I can allay

         13  commercial concerns to them, you know, this is a

         14  commercial opportunity for them, they see they've

         15  got a product and wonder how the hell people can't

         16  use it, but it's not built to be walked on. It's not

         17  built to help New Yorkers get out of buildings.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Are there other

         19  municipalities across the country that are using

         20  your product right now?

         21                 MR. SAPSFORD: There are other

         22  municipalities across the country using our product.

         23  We see this legislation as being world leading in

         24  its advocacy of photoluminescence as a supplemental

         25  egress system, and that's why we're here today.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: And what has

          3  been the experience in those other jurisdictions

          4  with the product?

          5                 MR. SAPSFORD: A lot of our product is

          6  used in high traffic areas, such as sports stadiums

          7  and sports arenas. We have any number of people

          8  willing to testify on behalf of efficacy of our

          9  product, and of how well it works and of how well

         10  it's worked for several years.

         11                 We've installed Olympic venues, as

         12  well as NBA venues in HL and so on.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: This is the last

         14  question, Madam Chairwoman.

         15                 Is it fair to compare the performance

         16  of your product in Madison Square Garden, let's say,

         17  to how it would perform in a commercial building,

         18  considering the light changes and the light factors?

         19                 MR. SAPSFORD: The inside of Madison

         20  Square Garden has helped people get to their seats

         21  or from their seats during a lights out, such as

         22  play introductions or Britney Spears concert, the

         23  use of our product in egress ways for emergency

         24  exiting is quite different. Figuratively the product

         25  works the same way, however.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Thank you.

          3                 Thank you, Madam Chair.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Okay, thank

          5  you.

          6                 MR. SAPSFORD: Thank you very much,

          7  Madam Chair.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Mark

          9  Ginsberg, Robert McGowan, and Jessica Handy.

         10                 Since time is running away from us,

         11  if you have very long statements, would you please

         12  make them very short.

         13                 Who wants to start? Go.

         14                 MR. GINSBERG: Can you hear me now?

         15  Members of the City Council and the Committee of

         16  Housing and Building, my name is Mark Ginsberg, and

         17  I am the President of the New York Chapter of the

         18  American Institute of Architects.

         19                 I am speaking today on behalf of the

         20  AIA New York Chapter and its Code Committee. Our

         21  organization with 3,400 architects and professional

         22  members strongly supports City Council Intro. 126 in

         23  its intent to increase safety in highrise buildings.

         24                 The proposed legislation implements

         25  recommendations presented in the World Trade Center
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          2  Building Task Force.

          3                 The legislation proposed would

          4  provide positive changes to include safety in

          5  highrise buildings with a height greater than 75

          6  feet.

          7                 These proposals come out of what we

          8  have learned from the study of the collapse of the

          9  World Trade Center and particularly the problems

         10  that resulted from breaching the stair enclosure and

         11  elevator shaft.

         12                 Key changes include or require:

         13                 - use of impact resistant stair

         14  enclosures, thereby improving construction standards

         15  for new construction, encouraging utilization of new

         16  materials;

         17                 - inspection and maintenance of

         18  potentially deteriorated fireproofing of open web

         19  steel joists during the course of building

         20  renovation to assure the integrity of the

         21  fireproofing, thereby maintaining the fire rating of

         22  the steel;

         23                 - clarification on the restriction of

         24  use of open web bar steel joists, so as not to

         25  exclude the use of other lightweight steel
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          2  structures, including space frames.

          3                 The emphasis placed on evacuation

          4  other than having building occupants remain within

          5  fire enclosures requires changes within the

          6  stairwell.

          7                 Directional exit signs will make

          8  exiting easier and more orderly. Changes in the

          9  required distance between the remote fire stairs

         10  limit the use of scissor stairs to buildings with

         11  smaller floor plans, and lower occupant loads.

         12                 In new buildings, the use of smoke

         13  vestibules around the elevator shaft, isolate the

         14  elevator from the stair to avoid the spread of smoke

         15  throughout the floor and exitway.

         16                 Some review of the design of the

         17  stairs may be required to allow for larger numbers

         18  of building occupants and firefighters. The use of

         19  fire towers to prevent smoke from entering the

         20  stairwell is a return to one of the best attributes

         21  of older buildings.

         22                 Recommendations for existing

         23  buildings are worth noting. Sprinklers are being

         24  mandated in existing commercial buildings to contain

         25  the fire.
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          2                 The retroactive sprinkler provision

          3  applies only to buildings with a height greater than

          4  100 feet.

          5                 Air intakes in new construction would

          6  have to be more than 20 feet above grade and 20 feet

          7  from exhaust requiring roof access.

          8                 This may be difficult to achieve for

          9  ground floor commercial space.

         10                 The intent of the recommendation to

         11  protect the central air intake from biohazards and

         12  general exhaust fumes, may not be achieved by

         13  applying these requirements to ground floor spaces.

         14                 We would recommend modifying the

         15  requirements to relate better to the particular

         16  conditions of ground floor spaces.

         17                 The need to update the New York City

         18  Building Code to the changing needs of office

         19  buildings after the World Trade Center attack and

         20  collapse is clear: Adopting the proposed legislation

         21  is a necessary first step needed to keep the New

         22  York City Building Code current in the wake of

         23  heightened concerns over building safety and egress.

         24                 It is also vital to reiterate the

         25  necessity to take these useful improvements into the
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          2  imminent and much needed adoption of the

          3  International Building Code.

          4                 Thank you for your time and

          5  consideration.

          6                 Monty Mitchell, AIA, Chair of the AI

          7  New York Chapter Code Committee and I would be

          8  pleased to answer any questions that you may have.

          9                 Thank you.

         10                 MS. McGOWAN: Good afternoon.

         11                 My name is Roberta McGowan. I'm the

         12  Executive Director of Building Owners And Managers

         13  Association of New York.

         14                 We represent -- I'm sorry, let me

         15  back up, we strongly support Intro. 126 local law to

         16  amend the Administrative Code of the City of New

         17  York in relation to building safety.

         18                 Further, we commend and support the

         19  efforts of Council Member Provenzano, and Department

         20  of Buildings Lancaster, to amend this Administrative

         21  Code.

         22                 By way of history, BOMA New York was

         23  founded in 1967, and we represent over 400 million

         24  square feet of commercial properties and 3 million

         25  office occupants.
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          2                 Our members are responsible for one

          3  and a half billion dollars in annual tax revenue.

          4                 BOMA New York is federated with BOMA

          5  International, which was founded in 1907, which has

          6  108 associations with 19,200 members who own or

          7  manage more than 9 billion square feet of commercial

          8  properties, representing more than 80 percent of the

          9  prime office space in North America.

         10                 BOMA's members are responsible for

         11  over $80 billion of marketplace dollars and a tax

         12  tab of $22 billion.

         13                 BOMA New York has been actively

         14  involved in several major initiatives with the

         15  Department of Buildings, not the least of which was

         16  the scaffolding legislation and the ongoing adoption

         17  of the International Code in New York City. We've

         18  given testimony supporting Commissioner Lancaster's

         19  efforts in this area.

         20                 Additionally, BOMA New York was

         21  approached by the New York City Fire Department to

         22  draft an emergency action plan White Paper, which

         23  addresses non-fire related evacuation.

         24                 This White Paper is in the process of

         25  being submitted to the New York City Fire Department
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          2  for their review.

          3                 With that in mind, we continue to

          4  pledge our members' expertise to Commissioner

          5  Lancaster and Council Member Provenzano in any way

          6  appropriate.

          7                 Thank you.

          8                 I'd like to introduce Jessica Handy,

          9  Co-Vice Chair of our Intro. 126 Task Force, to

         10  address the specifics of the proposed amendment.

         11                 MS. HANDY: Thank you. Again, my name

         12  is Jessica Handy, I am the Co-Vice Chair of BOMA New

         13  York's Introduction 126 Task Force.

         14                 BOMA New York recognizes the

         15  importance of Intro. 126 and the impact that it will

         16  have on the commercial real estate industry in New

         17  York City.

         18                 To demonstrate our interest in the

         19  impact of this proposed amendment, BOMA New York

         20  assembled a task force of building managers,

         21  building owners as representatives and industry

         22  professionals, to examine the requirements and

         23  ramifications of the amendment on our constituents.

         24                 Our task force agreed that our

         25  expertise will be most helpful to the Council and to
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          2  the Department of Buildings with respect to

          3  technical advisement on implementation of the

          4  forthcoming rules, and in encouraging the compliance

          5  of our constituents.

          6                 To this end, we direct our comments

          7  to the implementation phase of Intro. 126.

          8                 We would like to see all compliance

          9  dates adjusted to reflect the passage of time since

         10  this introduction was originally introduced.

         11                 We would like all resulting rules,

         12  reference standards, directives, et cetera, be

         13  referenced in this amendment.

         14                 Our fear is that once passed the

         15  applicable rules will get buried in agency rule

         16  books, as sometimes happens, making them difficult

         17  to find and to follow.

         18                 We would like to see all the rules to

         19  be promulgated by the assigned agencies, done so

         20  either earlier or prior to compliance dates assigned

         21  to building owners for any particular requirement.

         22                 For example, the photoluminescent

         23  marking requirement requires some -- the

         24  introduction describes some placement and then says

         25  later on we'll get more direction on further
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          2  placement, it would be more helpful for building

          3  owners to be able to order all these

          4  photoluminescent items in bulk, would be cheaper,

          5  and also less expensive to install all these items

          6  all at once, rather than the narrow time frame that

          7  we'd be given.

          8                 We encourage the Department of

          9  Buildings, when implementing, inspecting and

         10  responding to these new requirements, use existing

         11  forms or craft simple one-page forms where possible.

         12  It sounds elementary, but very important to those of

         13  us who need to manage these buildings.

         14                 With respect to sprinkler

         15  installation, we would like to see a revision to the

         16  original code to allow for a single source of water

         17  where a second source is not already available.

         18                 Requiring a second source of water

         19  would cause undue hardship and exponentially

         20  increase the cost of sprinkler installation in some

         21  cases.

         22                 This change in the Building Code was

         23  recently made for residential buildings, and we'd

         24  like to see the same revision applied to occupancy

         25  Group E building.
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          2                 We would like to see where a

          3  requirement applies to a renovation, the criteria

          4  for compliance be based upon the Department of

          5  Buildings' current criteria, rather than in creating

          6  additional criteria.

          7                 This request is specific to the

          8  elevator vestibule requirement.

          9                 The amendment discusses fire towers.

         10  Fire towers must be defined in the Building Code.

         11  The original definition had been removed from the

         12  current building code to be replaced if requirements

         13  for fire towers are to be made in this amendment.

         14                 Interesting to note that the last

         15  known Building Code definition of fire towers was in

         16  the code amended to January 1st, 1936.

         17                 Let's see, the section addressing

         18  outdoor air intakes should be specific that all

         19  outdoor air intake serving central systems shall be

         20  located at least 20 feet above ground level.

         21                 With respect to the piping equipment

         22  section, we propose this item be deferred for

         23  further study by the technical subcommittees of the

         24  IBC review.

         25                 With respect to the section requiring
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          2  evacuation drills, a separate BOMA subcommittee is

          3  working with the Fire Department of New York to

          4  craft a living emergency action plan document as

          5  Chief Savage discussed earlier.

          6                 We agree with this BOMA Subcommittee,

          7  that no capital expenditure be required by this

          8  amendment section.

          9                 We do have further comments, yet they

         10  are more housekeeping in nature for the suggestion

         11  of City Council Member Provenzano, during a meeting

         12  with her last week. We are submitting these comments

         13  under separate cover, and you have them.

         14                 In conclusion, we would like to

         15  emphasize interests in continuing to participate in

         16  this regulatory process.

         17                 As previously stated, BOMA New York

         18  is intimately involved in the scaffolding

         19  legislation and it's really important for me to

         20  point this out, because as a result of this our

         21  members view this legislation as a success.

         22                 We would like to continue this

         23  cooperative working relationship by assisting the

         24  Department of Buildings and any other agency

         25  assigned regulatory responsibility under this
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          2  amendment, in the implementation of the revision to

          3  the Building Code, with the hopes that our member

          4  owners and managers view this revised legislation as

          5  a success as well.

          6                 Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Council

          8  Member Fidler.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Mr. Ginsberg,

         10  you are an architect I take it?

         11                 MR. GINSBERG: Yes.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: And I guess

         13  you had the opportunity to listen to some of the

         14  testimony in one of those uncomfortable chairs out

         15  there?

         16                 MR. GINSBERG: Yes.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: And I see that

         18  during your testimony, you made reference to the

         19  open web field joist issue as being a key change.

         20  Having heard the comments of Mr. Hackworth, can you

         21  tell us whether or not you think this regulation

         22  ought to be changed and why?

         23                 MR. GINSBERG: I will start and then

         24  Mr. Mitchell will give some more detailed answers.

         25                 Our understanding, this was a
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          2  temporary prohibition. The problem with open web

          3  joists, because the sectional area of each part of

          4  the joist is smaller, it is harder to put

          5  fireproofing on it. So, there are issues in terms of

          6  testing and developing a standard, and our

          7  understanding is it is a temporary band until clear

          8  standards and testing can be shown that allow for

          9  the fireproofing to be put on the bar joists in a

         10  proper manner. But I will let Mr. Mitchell, who

         11  chairs our co-committee, give a more detailed

         12  answer.

         13                 MR. MITCHELL: Yes, we actually are

         14  following the recommendations in the Task Force

         15  report.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Identify

         17  yourself, please.

         18                 MR. MITCHELL: Monty Mitchell, I am

         19  Chair of the AIA Code Committee, which basically

         20  urges the updating of reference standards on the

         21  fireproofing requirement for lightweight steel

         22  members. We would urge an overall performance point

         23  of view towards the fireproofing of the steel

         24  material rather than an outright ban, and this

         25  legislation would propose a temporary restriction

                                                            119

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  until those reference standards are updated.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Council

          4  Member Brewer.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Thank you very

          6  much.

          7                 I have a question for the folks who

          8  spoke from BOMA, and that was very specific

          9  testimony. Thank you very much.

         10                 I represent a district that's got

         11  mixed, often commercial and residential, and so I

         12  know that this bill is focusing on the Group E

         13  buildings, which are commercial, but do you think

         14  there would be a situation for your manager, for

         15  instance, where there is a lot of mixture and it is

         16  somewhat necessary sometimes to have some of these

         17  commercial restrictions on the residential, or

         18  that's not an issue?

         19                 In other words, we have some very

         20  large buildings with -- I mean, Time Warner would be

         21  the obvious example, where there's residential and

         22  commercial, but there are others; is that something

         23  that comes up, or is it a very clear distinction in

         24  your mind?

         25                 MS. McGOWAN: I think it's a very
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          2  clear distinction in our mind. We basically focus on

          3  the commercial end of it. The buildings such as Time

          4  Warner are only starting to come about now.

          5  Certainly I think that the commercial codes have to

          6  be looked at first, because that's the basis of our

          7  constituency.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Okay, thank

          9  you very much.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you.

         11                 Thank all of you.

         12                 MR. GINSBERG: Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Carmen Romeo.

         14  Robert Hagardorn.

         15                 Mr. Mitchell, you need to sign one of

         16  these sheets before you leave.

         17                 Mr. Robert Hagardorn? No Hagardorn,

         18  okay.

         19                 Kevin McDermott? Going once.  Kevin

         20  McDermott?

         21                 Okay, Russell Shaw. This hearing is

         22  getting shorter and shorter.

         23                 Marna Wilber. Mary Barber? Okay, one

         24  of you start.

         25                 MR. ROMEO: Thank you. Members of the
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          2  City Council, thank you for the opportunity to

          3  testify today. My name is Carmen Romeo. I'm an

          4  electrical engineer with experience with building

          5  systems, including electrical distribution, fire and

          6  life safety.

          7                 I represent E-Lite Technologies, a

          8  manufacturer of electroluminescent lighting. We

          9  applaud the many building safety improvements that

         10  Intro. 126 will require, especially path marking.

         11                 The City of New York should be proud

         12  to take this leadership role in keeping their

         13  citizens safe.

         14                 My testimony today focuses on giving

         15  New Yorkers the choice to use the best available

         16  technology for marking paths to safety.

         17                 The current wording of the bill, in

         18  Section 27-383(b) mandate that photoluminescent

         19  material be used for exit path marking.

         20                 This wording should be changed to

         21  just luminescent, in order to allow building owners

         22  and operators the right to choose a superior

         23  technology.

         24                 It's important to note that this

         25  change will not preclude the use of photoluminescent

                                                            122

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  material, but would just electroluminescent

          3  technology an option.

          4                 Electroluminescent technology has

          5  been around since the 1930s. You see it used every

          6  day in cell phones, the Timex Indiglo watches,

          7  dashboards in cars, in airplanes as exit markings

          8  and in theaters as aisle lighting.

          9                 Electroluminescent light is the most

         10  efficient electrical source of light on earth. It is

         11  a luminous light source, it's made of material that

         12  is virtually indestructible, long lasting and very,

         13  very bright, making it the most visible light in

         14  smoke and poor visibility conditions.

         15                 The Department of Buildings has

         16  explained that the basis of their position for

         17  specifically requiring photoluminescent technology

         18  is that it doesn't need electricity and is therefore

         19  foolproof.

         20                 They acknowledge that electrical

         21  systems are reliable when properly maintained but

         22  are asking to legislate to the least common

         23  denominator of building operators that would

         24  willfully and unlawfully not maintain any of their

         25  building systems.
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          2                 While the legislation needs to allow

          3  for these types of owners, it should also allow for

          4  building owners who place a high emphasis on life

          5  safety and would use electroluminescent technology

          6  if it is available to them.

          7                 In an answer to one of the Council

          8  Member's questions, they stated that they would look

          9  to allow other material that would produce the same

         10  functionality. That's exactly what we're asking to

         11  change in the law.

         12                 The Department of Buildings testified

         13  earlier that they would look at other materials and

         14  we would, the point of the request is that that be

         15  done now.

         16                 There are many redundancies built

         17  into an EL system, making the chances of failure

         18  extremely remote.

         19                 The electroluminescent system has its

         20  own battery back-up. The batteries sit in a power

         21  control cabinet all through the electroluminescent

         22  system, and it will run the full eight hours, or

         23  really any number of hours desired, all by itself.

         24  But first, as had been acknowledged before, the

         25  building power would have to go out, then the
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          2  emergency generator would have to go out and then

          3  the system would take over.

          4                 Batteries are self-contained in a

          5  single location, which is the exact opposite of the

          6  emergency lights and exit signs where there are

          7  hundreds of batteries that all have to be manually

          8  tested one at a time.

          9                 The system's controller would be

         10  maintained the same time as the fire alarm panel,

         11  the system is designed to be put in along with a

         12  fire alarm system, and we all know fire alarm panels

         13  are one of the single, most maintained places in the

         14  building.

         15                 We actively monitor the systems, so

         16  if there is a problem anywhere in the system, if the

         17  batteries are low or there's an issue with the lamp,

         18  it will signal the fire alarm panel, so you can't

         19  ignore the fact the system might have an issue.

         20                 We also wire it from both ends, so if

         21  there was ever a cut in the middle of the system,

         22  anywhere, it would stay lit from both sides. So, you

         23  would have to cut one end of one wire and one end of

         24  another wire to even make, render the system

         25  useless.
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          2                 The system is also activated in an

          3  emergency, from the fire panel or from the security

          4  system, it doesn't have to wait for the light to go

          5  out. This can warn people of an impending issue

          6  before the lights have to go out, and we all know

          7  that every second counts in an emergency.

          8                 No system is foolproof, and

          9  photoluminescent products would only work if there's

         10  light to charge it.

         11                 Consider that the same building where

         12  an owner would willfully and unlawfully not maintain

         13  their systems, they're probably the same buildings

         14  that the lightbulbs and stairwells won't be working

         15  either. And you heard testimony as to

         16  photoluminescence requiring charging.

         17                 New York City will not be forging new

         18  ground with this change. The State of California

         19  passed a law in 1991 requiring path marking, and

         20  it's approved by both photo - and electroluminescent

         21  technologies.

         22                 The Massachusetts Board of Building

         23  Regulations and Standards has been charged with

         24  their own task force to creating a code for

         25  luminescent markings, and I've had meetings with the
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          2  Board and they've gotten enthusiastic support for

          3  electroluminescent-based systems.

          4                 The real superiority of

          5  electroluminescence is its brightness. You heard

          6  testimony today that they could not put a specific

          7  light value on the photoluminescence because there

          8  are so many mitigating factors.

          9                 With electroluminescence light it can

         10  be controlled, and you also heard Council Members

         11  read some testimony as to the level of light, that,

         12  yes, EL will be 100 times brighter within the first

         13  ten minutes, but that's only because we set the

         14  system for egress at a quarter of its potential. We

         15  could easily make the system be 400 times in the

         16  first ten minutes, and make the numbers of 600 times

         17  and 3,700 times multiples, multiplied by four.

         18                 If you do stay in the dark the whole

         19  time, you see a photoluminescent strip and your eyes

         20  will be acclimated to the darkness. But these

         21  systems should protect the Fire Department and

         22  rescue personnel, if they have to enter a building

         23  from outside where they've been looking at bright

         24  lights, we would want them to see, we want to keep

         25  your firefighters safe. To this point I submit a
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          2  written letter in my testimony from the fire chief,

          3  Richard Felner, of Fairfield, Connecticut. He's

          4  commenting on a test performed in severe conditions

          5  over two and a half years ago, that states the

          6  electroluminescent strip was the only thing visible

          7  when the incandescent and photoluminescent lighting

          8  could not be seen, where they recreated smoke

          9  conditions and sent firefighters into a tower to do

         10  some rescues, and the letter speaks for itself.

         11                 I do want to make one point of the

         12  photoluminescent testimony that was categorically

         13  incorrect.

         14                 The gentlemen stated that there's a

         15  mean time of failure for 1,500 hours for

         16  electroluminescent lamps, and that is categorically

         17  false.

         18                 There is no mean time to failure. The

         19  lamp will never, ever go out. We have lamp running

         20  for 54,000 continuous hours, and of course, in this

         21  case it will only be used in an emergency and when

         22  it needs to.

         23                 I'm also submitting into record a

         24  letter from Silverstein Properties, confirming that

         25  an electroluminescent system will be installed in
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          2  Number 7 Trade Center, and the buildings that will

          3  follow on that site.

          4                 As you know, Silverstein has

          5  committed to build the world's safest building, and

          6  they, along with their team of experts, chose an EL

          7  system because of the benefits I've discussed.

          8                 I'm also submitting a letter from

          9  Sacred Heart University in Fairfield, Connecticut,

         10  about their real life experience with the

         11  performance of a system in the August power outage,

         12  where their stairwells were not exposed to any

         13  light, and they had an orderly exist of the building

         14  by the light of an electroluminescent system.

         15                 Simply put, building owners and

         16  operators deserve the right to choose what systems

         17  they install, as long as they need the functional

         18  requirements.

         19                 Your law would require a reference

         20  standard to be developed in the next year. The right

         21  to choose technology includes knowingly taking on

         22  the maintenance and additional up-front cost of an

         23  electroluminescent system.

         24                 An example to illustrate this point

         25  is that the sprinkler systems that are required by
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          2  code, there are no mandates for what technology to

          3  use. We just could say sprinkler systems, even

          4  though there are several different kinds of

          5  sprinkler systems and they all have different cost

          6  and different maintenance associated with them.

          7                 This is left up to the building

          8  owners and specifiers to decide, rather than

          9  legislating any specific one out of use.

         10                 You only need to edit five letters to

         11  change your code to luminescent material, and by

         12  doing this you'll allow the freedom to choose the

         13  best available safety system to keep New Yorkers

         14  safe.

         15                 I'll go on one other specific

         16  opportunity. Madison Square Garden was cited. And

         17  you saw photoluminescent systems in Madison Square

         18  Garden. And I just want to point out, it's very

         19  interesting the operators in Madison Square Garden

         20  have actively looked at putting an

         21  electroluminescent system in, in addition to because

         22  it's better, because they don't think that system

         23  would work in some of the kinds of emergencies that

         24  have been experienced.

         25                 So, thank you for your time and your
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          2  consideration.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you.

          4                 Marna, do you want to give your

          5  testimony and then we'll take questions?

          6                 MS. WILBER: Good afternoon. My name

          7  is Marna Wilber. I represent the ASSA ABLOY Group.

          8  ASSA ABLOY Group is the world's leading manufacturer

          9  and supplier of locking solutions. We're dedicated

         10  to satisfying end-user needs for security, safety

         11  and convenience.

         12                 Our 25 manufacturing companies in the

         13  Americas include some of the names you may

         14  recognize. They include: YALE, SARGENT, ASSA,

         15  Mult-T-Lock, CORBIN RUSSWIN, NORTON, McKINNEY,

         16  CURRIES, HID and MEDECO.

         17                 Since our global Group mission is to

         18  provide security for buildings, safety for people

         19  and convenience for all, we are constantly

         20  challenging our companies to come up with new

         21  innovative products and features in quest of this

         22  mission.

         23                 We feel we have taken one step closer

         24  towards this mission by incorporating

         25  electroluminescent technology options in several
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          2  products resulting in enhanced life-safety

          3  capabilities.

          4                 We have recently collaborated with

          5  makers of an electroluminescent material and have

          6  integrated the technology into a SARGENT exit device

          7  and a CURRIES door frame. Both products are now

          8  illuminated to help identify the path to safety.

          9  These products may not be part of code requirements

         10  but can integrate with electroluminescent exit path

         11  marking systems to provide building owners with one

         12  effective integrated system.

         13                 We chose EL because of its superior

         14  visibility, versus competitive technology, such as

         15  LED, Fiber Optics and photoluminescent. Additionally

         16  we know that EL is longer lasting, reliable and cost

         17  effective over time.

         18                 Given our focus on safety and

         19  security, our corporate innovations, we are

         20  concerned about No. 126, provision 27-380(b) that

         21  would require exit path markings made of "an

         22  approved photoluminescent material which shall be

         23  capable of remaining visible in total darkness for a

         24  period of at least eight hours."

         25                 Building owners and operators deserve
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          2  the right to choose the best life safety

          3  technologies available, as long as they meet

          4  functional requirements. Building owners and

          5  architects routinely choose one high security

          6  hardware product over another based on performance.

          7                 There are many cylinder locking

          8  systems, for example, that can meet a Grade 1

          9  requirement yet building owners choose one versus

         10  the other for many reasons. Reasons may include:

         11  Superior performance in challenging field

         12  conditions, premium materials used in manufacturing,

         13  or the ability to accommodate a large keying system.

         14                 All of these features are above and

         15  beyond standards and are chosen because they are

         16  superior to the minimum grade requirements and can

         17  provide the building owner with points of

         18  differentiation when leasing the space.

         19                 One building owner here in New York

         20  City chose to do just this. A premium electronic key

         21  system was installed in over 1,200 apartments in a

         22  high-end residential building. The building owner

         23  recognized the ability to have exceptional key

         24  control, and by having that it was a security

         25  benefit for potential tenants.
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          2                 It was actively marketed as a point

          3  of differentiation along with the life safety

          4  concerns that a tenant may have and had a reason to

          5  rent an apartment in this building. This right to

          6  choose included knowingly taking on the

          7  responsibility of routine maintenance and paying the

          8  cost for the best system available.

          9                 While the intent of this provision is

         10  clear, increasing the visibility of exits in

         11  emergency situations, the use of the phrase

         12  "photoluminescent materials" is a standard that

         13  weakens the intent of the legislation.

         14                 Building owners should be given the

         15  option to choose, and the legislation should be

         16  designed to encourage installation of the best life

         17  safety technology available at the time of the

         18  legislation.

         19                 We ask that you change the term

         20  "photoluminescent" to the broader "luminescent" and

         21  make buildings safer for occupants, thus making the

         22  proposed legislation a true landmark in building

         23  safety.

         24                 Thank you for your consideration and

         25  concern enacting life safety standards.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you.

          3  Council Member Fidler.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Yes, just one

          5  question, Mr. Romeo.

          6                 Obviously, I think I was reading from

          7  one of your documents, I think the Sacred Heart

          8  study, in light level; we could lower the lights a

          9  little bit here in this room and I could probably

         10  still read that testimony.

         11                 So, the question I would have for you

         12  is how important is the difference in the level of

         13  luminescence? I mean, you know, if there's a fire

         14  and a smoky condition, does the difference in the

         15  luminescence of the photoluminescence system and an

         16  electroluminescence make a difference? That would be

         17  a critical factor to me.

         18                 MR. ROMEO: Brighter is better. And if

         19  there is smoke, brightness will penetrate smoke, so

         20  there is definitely a difference. It doesn't matter

         21  what light level, you have to see through the smoke.

         22                 And in light you want to be able to

         23  see a strip in an emergency, even if the power has

         24  not yet gone out.

         25                 And I would ask that since you did a
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          2  comparison before, you can do a comparison right

          3  now, and even without the light on, this is an

          4  electroluminescence strip, which I think you can

          5  see. You can turn off the lights and compare it to

          6  the other one that you're holding in your hand, if

          7  you care to choose to, but this is, you can see it

          8  in the light, and I haven't even turned the light

          9  off.

         10                 But brighter is better.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Do you want

         12  one of the other ones?

         13                 MR. ROMEO: Sure. If you'd like to,

         14  sure.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Here's the

         16  other one.

         17                 MR. ROMEO: There is no doubt they are

         18  photoluminescent products. In an emergency, I ask,

         19  should you have to look for it, or should it be

         20  something that's easy to follow?

         21                 And, again, we're not trying to say

         22  photoluminescent products should not be used as part

         23  of your code. They should be there to choose, if the

         24  owner so chooses. We're not trying to say that one

         25  or the other is better. At this point we're just
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          2  saying the law should allow the owners to choose

          3  which one they would like.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: I have a

          5  question about the cost.

          6                 What is the recurring cost? Obviously

          7  the battery. Is it an expensive battery? It's

          8  obviously one battery for the building, you made

          9  that point.

         10                 MR. ROMEO: There's one battery per

         11  controller. One of our controllers would power about

         12  eight floors worth of lighting. So, in a ten-story

         13  building, or a 12-story building, it would be one or

         14  two controllers.

         15                 The number of batteries would differ,

         16  but it's all contained in one, and that is the only

         17  recurring cost. Every four years batteries are

         18  scheduled to be changed.

         19                 The initial cost is different, and,

         20  therefore, there's another place where you would

         21  defray, maybe the owner of a building that really

         22  wants to cut every corner possible, they would go

         23  with a photoluminescent system because it is a

         24  less-expensive system.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Okay. Thank
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          2  you very much.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you,

          4  both.

          5                 Jack Murphy. Vincent Dunn. Dan

          6  Benjamin, or Benjamin Roy, from NFPA.

          7                 I understand, Mr. Dunn, that you

          8  could be helpful in talking about the open web steel

          9  joists?

         10                 Mr. Fidler, this is for you.

         11                 MR. DUNN: Good afternoon. The open

         12  web bar joist, the open web bar joist, whether it

         13  was constructed by the bar joist industry or by the

         14  Port Authority was still designed as an open web bar

         15  joist. If it walks like a duck, if it quacks like a

         16  duck --

         17                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Sorry, could

         18  you introduce yourself? We all know who you are.

         19                 MR. DUNN: My name is Vincent Dunn. I

         20  am a retired Deputy Chief, New York City Fire

         21  Department. I'm a fire protection consultant.

         22                 And as far as the question of why the

         23  fire service does not like open web bar joists is

         24  that they were tested by the National Fire

         25  Protection Association 30 years ago and they found
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          2  that an unprotected open web bar joist will fail

          3  within five to ten minutes of fire exposure.

          4                 And we know, as another speaker

          5  stated, that the fluffy spray-on fire retardant is

          6  difficult to put on an I beam, a solid I beam, let

          7  alone an open web bar joist which has thin bars.

          8  Fluffy spray-on does not stay there.

          9                 And the open web bar joist, when you

         10  compare it to a steel I beam, it's a lightweight

         11  structure. It's another step the designers use to

         12  take mass out of a building. It's a light floor

         13  joist. And they've been taking mass out of these

         14  high-rise buildings for 50 years, and we know fire

         15  resistance is directly related to mass. It's another

         16  step.

         17                 The other thing, the design of that

         18  truss in the World Trade Center was horrendous by

         19  the Port Authority. It was 60 feet long,

         20  unsupported. It had no column supporting a 60-foot

         21  floor beam. It had no girders, there was no

         22  redundancy in that structure, and it was held by a

         23  bearing wall. It was a long span roof system with no

         24  interior support by a column or girder. That was why

         25  the fire service highlighted and pinpointed these
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          2  open web bar joists. They may not be constructed by

          3  the gentleman who works for the open bar joist

          4  construction industry. It may have been designed by

          5  the Port Authority people, but it was an open web

          6  bar joist truss, however you want to call it.

          7                 I only have one --

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Before you

          9  proceed, I wanted the record to reflect that I

         10  stayed for that answer and I never really did think

         11  that it was an arbitrary conspiracy of the

         12  firefighters, and I'm very glad to hear the answer

         13  on the record, because it clearly is not arbitrary

         14  and capricious.

         15                 Thank you.

         16                 MR. DUNN: And I only have one

         17  question as to the recommendations. Why did

         18  recommendation two, prohibiting the trusses, and

         19  recommendation 9, prohibiting, requiring the

         20  protective vestibule, apply to commercial buildings

         21  over 75 feet, and the sprinkler recommendation apply

         22  to buildings over 100 feet. I believe that that

         23  recommendation for sprinklers should apply to

         24  buildings over 75 feet.

         25                 The Fire Department of the City of

                                                            140

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  New York consists of high-rise buildings, any

          3  structure, residential or commercial, over 75 feet.

          4  And that's all I have to say.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Our Buildings

          6  folks will take note of that.

          7                 MR. ROY: Thank you, Madam Provenzano,

          8  and good afternoon. Thank you for allowing me to

          9  speak before you today. I do have some handouts

         10  here.

         11                 My name is Ben Roy. I serve as the

         12  Mid-Atlantic Regional Manager for the National Fire

         13  Protection Association.

         14                 I am here today to provide comments

         15  on the Committee's consideration to amend the

         16  Administrative Code of the City of New York in

         17  relation to building safety as contained in Intro.

         18  126.

         19                 First of all, let me commend you for

         20  the work that you're doing to try to make buildings

         21  throughout the City even safer.

         22                 At NFPA for the past 108 years we

         23  have been working to enhance public safety in a

         24  variety of ways.

         25                 In addition to code development, NFPA
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          2  channels its resources into national public safety

          3  campaigns like Fire Prevention Week and public

          4  education programs like Risk Watch, Learn Not to

          5  Burn and Remembering When. Safety is our mission, so

          6  if there is any way that our association can assist

          7  and help you in your effort, please let me know.

          8                 Let me tell you just a little bit

          9  about NFPA as it relates to model safety codes that

         10  we developed that are used all over the world.

         11                 We are a not-for-profit international

         12  organization that has been developing safety codes

         13  since 1896. We develop about 300 codes and standards

         14  that include building, fire, electrical, life safety

         15  provisions, along with many others. Our codes are

         16  currently adopted in all 50 states and around the

         17  world.

         18                 Anyone who is interested in public

         19  safety can have an important impact on our model

         20  code documents.

         21                 And in fact, getting input from all

         22  interested parties is really the key to our success

         23  and the success of NFPA's codes and standards.

         24                 We bring the best people together

         25  within the best system to write the best model
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          2  codes.

          3                 As you know, you, as well as your

          4  colleagues late last year in the New York City

          5  Council, approved the 2002 addition of an NFPA 70

          6  National Electric Code as a basis for your City's

          7  electrical code here.

          8                 This legislation was signed by the

          9  Mayor in December, and is now effective here in your

         10  City.

         11                 National Electric Code is considered

         12  to be the blueprint for electrical safety throughout

         13  the world. Additionally we produce NFPA 101 Life

         14  Safety Code which is truly the genesis of nearly all

         15  means of egress and life safety criteria for codes

         16  used in the United States.

         17                 Both of these documents are used all

         18  over this country, as well as the world.

         19                 We have recently partnered with a

         20  wide range of well respected code development

         21  organizations, including the International

         22  Association of Plumbing and Mechanical Officials,

         23  the Western Fire Chiefs Association, and the

         24  American Society of Heating and Refrigeration and

         25  Air Conditioning Engineers.
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          2                 These independent organizations, each

          3  with its own specialties and areas of expertise,

          4  they combined their efforts and coordinated their

          5  key safety documents to create the Comprehensive

          6  Consensus Codes set, referred to as the C3 set.

          7                 The C3 set is the only set of codes

          8  and standards for the built environment that have

          9  all been developed using a consensus-based process

         10  accredited by the ANSI or the American National

         11  Standards Institute, the most respected independent

         12  code and standard oversight organization in the

         13  nation.

         14                 Accreditation from this organization

         15  demonstrates a code development organization's

         16  commitment to balanced input from all interested

         17  parties.

         18                 Included in this C3 set is NFPA's new

         19  building code, NFPA 5000 Building Construction and

         20  Safety Code.

         21                 This code contains provisions for

         22  every aspect of design and construction of buildings

         23  instructors, and has been selected to serve as the

         24  basis for the Statewide Building Code in the State

         25  of California.
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          2                 It is also the only Building Code

          3  which has included since its inception the goal of

          4  firefighter safety.

          5                 Additionally the Building

          6  Construction and Safety Code is the only code that

          7  gives the fire service, as well as any other

          8  interest group, a voice and vote from the beginning

          9  to the end of the code development process.

         10                 On behalf of NFPA I want to commend

         11  the Committee for considering these important

         12  amendments to the New York City Building Code.

         13                 As you know, in the wake of the

         14  terrible tragedy of September the 11th, 2001, these

         15  changes will be critically important to protect the

         16  lives of citizens and property.

         17                 Your Committee, in collaboration with

         18  the Department of Buildings, has provided key

         19  amendments to the code that will truly enhance

         20  public safety in the City.

         21                 I spoke to some length a few minutes

         22  ago about our Building Construction Code, because I

         23  would be remiss if I didn't point out to you in my

         24  comments that many of the proposed code changes that

         25  are before you today, are included as provisions of
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          2  our building construction and safety code.

          3                 I have provided several examples in

          4  my written testimony, that in the interest of time

          5  I'll let you read on your own, but they include the

          6  sprinkler protection for existing buildings, as well

          7  as many of the other items.

          8                 Again, I'd like to commend you as a

          9  Committee for continuing to strengthen the City's

         10  existing building code and urge you to strongly

         11  consider our building construction and safety code,

         12  as you continue to update the code and adopted a new

         13  one here for your City.

         14                 We welcome the opportunity to

         15  continue a dialogue with your Committee and to

         16  provide any information you might need.

         17                 NFPA is happy to meet with the

         18  Committee members at any time to review adoption of

         19  any building code or any revisions.

         20                 Thank you, again, for your commitment

         21  to public safety in New York City, and for allowing

         22  me to share NFPA's views.

         23                 I look forward to working with each

         24  of you. Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you.
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          2                 Jack.

          3                 MR. MURPHY: Good afternoon. My name

          4  is Jack Murphy. I am the Vice Chairman of New York

          5  City High-Rise Fire Safety Directors.

          6                 The Fire Safety Directors support the

          7  World Trade Center codes that are set forth here

          8  today with some enhanced comments.

          9                 One, the Fire Safety Directors do

         10  look forward to working with the emergency

         11  evacuation plan and the challenge to make this work

         12  within limited exit capacity of existing buildings,

         13  and the various levels to perform such an effective

         14  evacuation plan.

         15                 And, two, sprinklers. The Fire Safety

         16  Directors, as we said from the beginning, support

         17  the sprinklers installation in existing buildings

         18  but at a seven-year pace, within the year, by the

         19  Year 2011, and with a waiver extension until the

         20  Year 2019.

         21                 We must keep in mind that the

         22  sprinkler system for existing high-rises was first

         23  introduced before Local Law 5 was brought about in

         24  the early seventies, and if we do the quick math, it

         25  will be almost 40, 50 years before we had the
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          2  building fully sprinklered.

          3                 With that, a lot of these older

          4  buildings have been retrofitted around the country.

          5  The White House is retrofitted. They're in there for

          6  historic reasons and to protect the buildings, and

          7  we can apply the same technology here, that is why

          8  we're asking for a seven year installation with the

          9  waiver not beyond 2019.

         10                 Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you. I

         12  will ask the same question. This Committee will also

         13  be holding a hearing on external emergency

         14  evacuation plans, so hopefully you'll be there.

         15  We'll let you know.

         16                 Okay, thank all of you.

         17                 We have two more panels. Domenick

         18  Kass, Glenn McNamara, Daniel McGee. How about

         19  Chester Vogel?

         20                 Any one of you choose to start. State

         21  your name.

         22                 MR. KASS: My name is Dominick Kass,

         23  Clifton Park, New York.

         24                 I represent National Fire Sprinkler

         25  Association, and we support Intro. 126, specifically
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          2  the fire sprinkler provisions, and I will have to

          3  agree with Mr. Murphy, that the seven year would be

          4  more enticing to doing the job properly in a timely

          5  manner, as well as 75 foot limit staying with the

          6  national standards.

          7                 It is both an honor and a pleasure to

          8  have the opportunity to testify in front of this

          9  Committee today on behalf of National Fire Sprinkler

         10  Association, known as the NFSA, and I commend Mayor

         11  Bloomberg and the Committee in their endeavors to

         12  make New York City a safer place to live, work and

         13  play for its citizens and visitors.

         14                 As I stated before, my name is

         15  Dominick Kass, a certified fire protection

         16  specialist and Northeast Regional Manager for the

         17  NFSA.

         18                 My professional background has roots

         19  in the fire service going back to 1974 as a

         20  certified firefighter, Fire Inspector Level 2, Fire

         21  Instructor Level 2 at Bergen County, New Jersey Fire

         22  Academy, and also Fire Officers 2 certification

         23  through National Fire Academy.

         24                 I also sit on two technical

         25  committees with the NFPA, NFPA 101 and NFPA 1031 as
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          2  a principal member.

          3                 I'm also a former director of the

          4  Executive Board of the Fire Service Section of the

          5  NFPA.

          6                 The NFSA is a trade association whose

          7  membership is a make-up of fire sprinkler fire

          8  contractors, fire officials, building officials,

          9  architects, engineers, designers, insurance

         10  representatives, and many other Americans in pursuit

         11  of the ultimate fire safety automatic fire

         12  sprinklers.

         13                 The NFSA applauds the move to require

         14  owners of buildings 100 feet more in height to

         15  comply with the provisions, but, again, I would

         16  reiterate, I agree with the 75 foot being more

         17  realistic with other national standards.

         18                 This action is a good start and we

         19  are confident that in the future New York City

         20  leaders will include other occupancy classifications

         21  in buildings lower than 100 feet in height, Section

         22  27-929. Rarely a day goes by without New York City

         23  television reporting on a tragic fire within the

         24  City indicating a need for future fire safety

         25  actions.
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          2                 It is fitting that we have this

          3  hearing on this date in regards to a combination of

          4  high-rise buildings and fire sprinklers. On the 23rd

          5  and 24th day of February, 1991, the start of many

          6  tragic incidents took place, the initial incident

          7  will be forever known as Meridian Plaza fire.

          8                 Many of us, especially firefighters,

          9  only need to hear those words "Meridian Plaza fire"

         10  to grasp the importance of fire sprinklers.

         11                 For those of you not familiar with

         12  this historical fire, it started on a 38-story

         13  building known as 1 Meridian Plaza in Philadelphia,

         14  Pennsylvania. A fire broke out on the 22nd floor, in

         15  a non-fire sprinklered building, at approximately 24

         16  hours -- 20:40 hours on the 23rd of February 1991

         17  and burned for 19 hours.

         18                 The fire itself was only the first of

         19  many tragedies, in that there were 24 firefighters

         20  with physical injuries and three firefighters of

         21  Engine 11 in Philadelphia were killed.

         22                 They went to 12 alarms, including 51

         23  engine companies, 15 ladder companies, 11

         24  specialized units and 300 firefighters plus.

         25                 The fire progressed unimpeded up
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          2  through plumbing, electrical communications and

          3  other utility penetrations on the floor, from the

          4  22nd floor all the way to the 29th floor of the

          5  building. And as the fire spread from the 29th to

          6  the 30th floor, ten fire sprinklers activated and

          7  extinguished the fire.

          8                 After 19 hours, the vertical fire

          9  spread was completely stopped by these ten fire

         10  sprinklers. It was considered a non-fire sprinklered

         11  building, as I stated before, because they were just

         12  going through retrofit.  As floors were vacated and

         13  being renovated, they were adding fire sprinklers.

         14                 Fire consumed all available

         15  combustible materials from the 22nd to 29th floor.

         16  At the request of certain tenants, the building had

         17  been partially retrofitted with fire sprinklers on

         18  the 30th, 31st, 34th, 35th floor. After 11 hours of

         19  firefighting operation efforts were halted and

         20  personnel were drawn from the building, and to

         21  reiterate, ten fire sprinklers halted the fire's

         22  progression.

         23                 The conclusion of the United State's

         24  Fire Administration as investigated the report of 1

         25  Meridian Plaza, and many of their other
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          2  investigations, over the years end with much the

          3  same sentiment, and I quote from one of their

          4  reports, "the ultimate message delivered by this

          5  fire is to prove that automatic fire sprinklers are

          6  the most effective and reliable means at our

          7  disposal to protect high-rise buildings from the

          8  ravages of fire." And I'll have to agree with that.

          9                 Ensuing tragedies include incredible

         10  economic loss and total devastation of the

         11  neighborhood over the years following the fire.

         12  Devastation through the loss of 1 Meridian Plaza and

         13  surrounding buildings increased crime in the area,

         14  increased vagrancy, also happens to be the

         15  neighborhood near Philadelphia City Hall.

         16                 "The Meridian Plaza fire resulted in

         17  economic hardship for the City, the building never

         18  reopened, was eventually torn down at great cost

         19  displacing many Philadelphia businesses and

         20  businesses in buildings surrounding it were affected

         21  because employees couldn't return to work for days

         22  during the fire investigation," and that's a direct

         23  quote from National Fire Protection Association.

         24                 Engineering investigation showed that

         25  parts of the building structure and facade are far
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          2  from ever being able to be repaired.

          3                 Twenty months after the fire

          4  litigation resulted from the fire, was already over

          5  $4 billion in civil damage claims. Hundreds of

          6  firefighters' lives were changed forever, the three

          7  were ended forever.

          8                 Closer to home, after the New York

          9  City Bank Building fire, 31 January 1993, it was

         10  concluded that if the fire had started on floors

         11  above the tenth floor, that compartmentation may be

         12  inadequate to prevent fire from growing to extremely

         13  destructive proportions.

         14                 A report from John Jay College of

         15  Criminal Justice after investigating 1,530 fires in

         16  New York City alone, stated fire sprinklers were

         17  significantly more effective than compartmentation

         18  as a means of controlling fires in high-rise

         19  buildings.

         20                 However, compartmentation singly is

         21  not the answer, as there have been numerous cases

         22  where the fire extended vertically up the exterior

         23  of the building, particularly when curtain wall

         24  construction is used.

         25                 Automatic fire sprinkler systems
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          2  competently designed and stalled when properly

          3  maintained will continue to support fire sprinklers

          4  unblemished record of well over 100 years of not

          5  allowing any multiple fatalities in a fully

          6  sprinklered building.

          7                 I'd also like to add that there is

          8  presently a piece of federal legislation pending

          9  known as HR 1824, introduced by Representative

         10  Weldon of Pennsylvania, known as the Fire Sprinkler

         11  Incentive Act, that would make fire sprinkler

         12  retrofit projects in any occupancy of any

         13  construction type a no-brainer.

         14                 Briefly, HR 1824, through tax

         15  depreciation, a building owner can recover the

         16  expense of fire sprinkler retrofit in five years

         17  rather than 39 years for commercial, or 27 and a

         18  half years for residential properties. Add in

         19  insurance reductions and the cost savings that are

         20  even more impressive, and after the five-year

         21  depreciation period, insurance savings can be --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Can I ask you

         23  to sum up, because we're kind of getting thrown out

         24  of this room.

         25                 MR. KASS: Right at the end. I ask
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          2  that the New York City Council consider adopting the

          3  attached resolution to encourage Congress to act on

          4  this important life safety initiative. Respectfully

          5  submitted, I'd be glad to hear any questions.

          6                 MR. McGEE: Good afternoon, Madam

          7  Chairman. My name is Dan McGee. I'm a licensed

          8  professional engineer, licensed for New York State,

          9  and a consultant on construction codes and

         10  standards.

         11                 I'm here today on behalf of the Smoke

         12  Guard Corporation, a manufacturer of equipment

         13  that's able to keep elevator shafts smoke-free.

         14                 Because of the shortness of the time,

         15  I'll get right to some of the specific modifications

         16  we would like to see you make.

         17                 Section 27-353.2, which relates to

         18  smoke protection of elevators, specifically speaks

         19  only in terms of occupancy group E, office

         20  occupancy.

         21                 We believe this is a significant

         22  shortcoming of the proposed amendment.

         23  Life-endangering smoke conditions can occur in all

         24  buildings with elevator shafts.

         25                 In recent years we've seen examples
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          2  in several different cities of deaths from smoke

          3  occurring at building locations very remote from the

          4  location of the fire.

          5                 Now, a great emphasis is always

          6  placed on structural fire resistance but not enough

          7  on smoke containment.

          8                 That is the killer. You just had

          9  recently here in New York a fire, six-story building

         10  only, fire on the first floor, and there's the smoke

         11  pouring out of the top of the building. Smoke does

         12  not know what occupancy it is in. It will react

         13  exactly the same, whether it is in an office

         14  building or any other occupancy.

         15                 I would also point out that some of

         16  the most endangered occupancies, occupants of

         17  buildings, are those that are in nursing homes and

         18  hospitals because of their incapacitation.

         19                 Those facilities rely on what they

         20  call "defend in place." Those are the locations that

         21  more than any need smoke containment equipment.

         22                 I'll jump right to the specific

         23  recommendations we would like to see you make.

         24                 In Section 27-353.2, I hate to read

         25  all of this, but in that section, we would like you
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          2  to enhance that section by including other occupancy

          3  groups, such as C, E, we have E, F1, F4, H1, those

          4  are incapacitated, H2, J1, and J2.

          5                 Those occupancies are just in much in

          6  need of protection as office buildings, and that is

          7  an easy amendment to make, I believe.

          8                 I'd like to get to one more point

          9  here. In Section 27-353.2A, we would urge you to

         10  recognize new methods of smoke containment. The text

         11  addresses vestibules only, which is all right, but I

         12  would urge you to amend Section 27-353.2A to provide

         13  language that allows for the use of other methods.

         14  If you make the language so tight the MEA Division

         15  of the Department of Buildings cannot approve other

         16  materials if you make the wording so restrictive.

         17                 I would urge you to add to that

         18  section, at the end of the sentence after "four

         19  slab", or "have the elevator shafts smoke protected

         20  by other approved methods capable of limiting smoke

         21  penetration into the elevator shaft to three cubic

         22  feet per minute per square foot of door opening at

         23  three-tenths of an inch water gauge at seven degrees

         24  Fahrenheit and 400 degrees Fahrenheit, when tested

         25  in accordance with NFTA 105, the standard for the

                                                            158

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  installation of smoke door assemblies."

          3                 Now, that is a new reference standard

          4  which you would also have to add to the back of the

          5  code. But that's an accepted standard that will

          6  provide you with smoke protection that you need.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: I would ask

          8  you to stay with matters that are just relative to

          9  this piece of legislation.

         10                 MR. McGEE: Well, these are

         11  specifically.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Well, you're

         13  talking about senior centers and nursing homes, and

         14  that's legislation for another day. This is for

         15  high-rise office --

         16                 MR. McGEE: Office.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Office

         18  buildings.

         19                 MR. McGEE: Well, these two amendments

         20  relate to how you approve other than a wall that

         21  goes from floor to ceiling.

         22                 There are other methods and you

         23  should open up -- that are used by the State

         24  Department, all over the country, the world now, and

         25  the City. So, I'll sum that up with that, and the
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          2  recommendations are in my written paper, and I hope

          3  that you will accept them. Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you

          5  very much.

          6                 MR. VOGEL: Madam Chairwoman, my name

          7  is Chester T. Vogel, Professional Engineer in the

          8  State of New York. I'm an engineer in private

          9  practice for 40 years in the metropolitan New York

         10  area.

         11                 I'm here today representing the

         12  American Council of Engineering Consultants of New

         13  York, as the Mechanical Code Committee Chairman for

         14  that organization, which works very closely with the

         15  Building Department of the City of New York, and

         16  writing amendments and legislation for building

         17  code.

         18                 I participate actively in reference

         19  standard 13-1, the current latest ventilation

         20  standards in Building Code.

         21                 I also am a member of the Model Code

         22  Committee, as the Chairman of the Mechanical HVAC

         23  and Boiler Committee, which is currently writing the

         24  amendments to the International Building Code, where

         25  I had the opportunity to meet with you recently.
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          2                 My comments are very brief, but they

          3  support recommendations recently stated today by

          4  BOMA, specifically items eight and nine, which deal

          5  with outdoor air intakes, and fuel oil systems. Item

          6  9 is not clearly defined as fuel oil systems in

          7  their comments, but it is referencing Section 27-830

          8  which deals with fuel oil legislation.

          9                 Our committee would like the

         10  opportunity to work with the Building Department to

         11  modify Section 27-754 (f) for outdoor intakes to

         12  make it more flexible for various occupancies within

         13  the high-rise office buildings. More specifically

         14  the retail establishments which are frequently at

         15  the first floor level of those buildings, and which

         16  may need other opportunities for air intake.

         17                 And secondly, in Section 27-830 for

         18  fuel oil systems, we believe further language is

         19  needed to clarify the requirements for fuel oil

         20  storage within piping and routing of the piping in

         21  systems which do not include storage tanks. The

         22  legislation primarily deals with storage tanks as

         23  it's written. We would like such opportunity to deal

         24  with the Building Department and amend the

         25  legislation where we have had the opportunity to
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          2  work with Steve Colgate, who is here today -- I'm

          3  sorry, James Colgate. I'm sorry. We've had the

          4  opportunity to work with James Colgate recently to

          5  write such legislation, to assist him with writing

          6  the legislation prior to its implementation.

          7                 Thank you very much.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Folks that

          9  are here from the Department of Buildings certainly

         10  will follow up on that. Thank you very much.

         11                 MR. VOGEL: Thank you, Madam

         12  Chairwoman.

         13                 Robert Katz, Beverly Eckhert, are you

         14  in the house? Just you? No Robert Katz? And you're

         15  the finale.

         16                 MS. ECKERT: Okay, is this on?

         17                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Yes.

         18                 MS. ECKERT: My name is Beverly

         19  Eckert, and like millions of others who live in the

         20  tristate area, I've commuted to New York to work.

         21  I'm currently a vice president of a Fortune 500

         22  company. I probably should have worn a more

         23  corporate outfit today, but I wanted to be

         24  comfortable.

         25                 My company leases space at One
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          2  Liberty Plaza overlooking Ground Zero. In the past

          3  I've worked at 80 John Street, 120 Broadway and 60

          4  Water, and as an aside I can attest to the fact that

          5  in the 20 year span that I've been working in

          6  highrises in New York, I never once entered a

          7  stairwell in the course of an emergency fire drill,

          8  so there is definitely a need to change evacuation

          9  protocol. I wouldn't have known what to do once I

         10  got inside one of those stairwells.

         11                 Once upon a time when commuting to

         12  the City location, meaning ease of commute was my

         13  highest priority. Now, instead, I wonder what my

         14  chances are of getting out of the buildings alive.

         15                 I have no doubt that the City Council

         16  members appreciate that safer buildings achieved by

         17  improved building codes is logical and worthwhile as

         18  a goal. I have no doubt that as human beings you all

         19  comprehend that you have a moral obligation to those

         20  who are going to work in these buildings and who are

         21  subject to the decisions that you're going to be

         22  making in the coming weeks.

         23                 Before I became familiar with the

         24  workings of government in Washington, D.C., at

         25  least, I would have believed that this was enough,
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          2  that in the end public servants would do the right

          3  thing. But I've become a cynic, and over the past

          4  two years, I've learned that it often comes down to

          5  economics.

          6                 So, I'm here to be the voice of those

          7  who live outside the City itself, but are in a major

          8  part of its economic vitality. I'm here to say how

          9  important the safe buildings are to commuters. The

         10  economic vitality of this City will continue to be

         11  adversely affected until people have subjective

         12  reasons to feel safer.

         13                 So, I want to comment that that

         14  15-year window for retrofitting buildings in New

         15  York City put economic factors above human life, and

         16  I think that needs to be changed.

         17                 The world changed after September

         18  11th. We saw skyscrapers fall, we learned stairwells

         19  crumbled around those trying to escape. The revised

         20  building codes contain measures to prevent

         21  progressive collapse and they contain provisions for

         22  reinforced stairwells. Those are just two of the

         23  many, of the common sense improvements that will be

         24  the legacy of this Council if it does the job the

         25  public deserves and expects.

                                                            164

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2                 I'm here today to speak as a

          3  commuter, but I also have another reason. I'm a

          4  widow. My husband Sean was in Tower 2. Don't let his

          5  death be meaningless, and don't let history repeat

          6  itself.

          7                 Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Thank you

          9  very much.

         10                 I would also like to remind folks

         11  that are here from the Buildings Department that I,

         12  too, had a problem with that 15 years, as did I

         13  think at least three or four people today.

         14                 So, it might be something that you

         15  really want to think about.

         16                 You didn't have a question, Gale, did

         17  you?

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: No.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: I thank

         20  everybody for coming today, and Intro. 126 will be

         21  laid over, which means we will have another hearing

         22  at some point.

         23                 Thank you all for coming, you can now

         24  go out into the snow.

         25                 This meeting is closed.

                                                            165

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2                 (The following written testimony was

          3  read into the record.)

          4

          5

          6  Written Testimony Of:

          7  Marolyn Davenport

          8  Senior Vice President

          9  Real Estate Board of New York

         10

         11  Testimony before the Housing and Buildings Committee

         12  RE: Intro. 126

         13  February 24, 2004

         14

         15                 The Real Estate Board of New York,

         16  representing over 6000 owners, builders, brokers,

         17  and managers of high-rise commercial and residential

         18  property, worked closely with the Department of

         19  Buildings to study the New York City Building Code

         20  in light of the events of September 11th.

         21                 I served on the Mayor's World Trade

         22  Center Building Code Review Task Force and

         23  participated on the Egress and Fire Protection

         24  Committees.

         25                 REBNY also had representatives on the
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          2  Mechanical and Structural Committees. REBNY supports

          3  the intent of this legislation and its provisions. A

          4  few of these provisions need rewording - with the

          5  limited time available to complete our study, a

          6  couple were written too quickly and perhaps we were

          7  too immersed in the subject area to provide

          8  sufficient clarification for broad use. But the

          9  underlying concepts are solid and we support them.

         10                 The goal of the Task Force was not to

         11  make buildings safe if hit by a jumbo jet flying at

         12  high speed. Its purpose was to look at what happened

         13  that terrible day and at our Building Code to see if

         14  there are practical ways to make high rise office

         15  building construction safer. From the outset all who

         16  participated agreed that our current built

         17  environment is extremely safe - that NYC safety

         18  standards are second to none. The Task Force focused

         19  entirely on high-rise office buildings, because they

         20  were the buildings destroyed on September 11th.

         21                 Some of the provisions are fairly

         22  simple and have already been implemented on a

         23  voluntary basis in many buildings. For example, the

         24  Building Information Card, although not formally

         25  adopted, is available for Fire Department use in
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          2  many, if not most, office buildings.

          3                 Many buildings have put into place

          4  full building evacuation plans and have held drills

          5  for their tenants. Buildings will be required to add

          6  photoluminescent signs on exit doors and places

          7  where the exit path changes direction or is

          8  extended, i.e., where the exit proceeds in some

          9  fashion other than straight down the stairs. It is

         10  good practice to inspect fireproofing, which is

         11  normally behind the walls, when it is exposed during

         12  a renovation.

         13                 Some provisions are more complicated

         14  and will take time. When the proposal was made

         15  public I was contacted by several news

         16  organizations, all of them sure that the real estate

         17  industry would oppose a requirement to retrofit

         18  buildings over 100 feet tall with sprinklers because

         19  it is a very expensive requirement. It is very

         20  costly. But this is a case where the added cost

         21  results in a meaningful increase in the level of

         22  safety. It needs to be implemented in a practical

         23  way and there will be buildings, whether because of

         24  multi-tenant floors or very long-term leases, where

         25  additional time is needed to comply. The law
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          2  provides for these cases in the hardship extension

          3  provisions.

          4                 Several of the provisions apply only

          5  to new construction of high-rise office buildings.

          6  The language in the section dealing with elevator

          7  vestibules in new buildings was developed after the

          8  1993 bombing of the World Trade Center and should be

          9  implemented. Additional reinforcement will be

         10  required in stair enclosures.

         11                 Some of the provisions require

         12  clarification. With the intense work underway in the

         13  study of the International Building Code we have

         14  learned more about some of these issues and of the

         15  need to coordinate this legislation with Model Code

         16  recommendations. This is particularly true in the

         17  sections related to mechanical systems where the

         18  intent is not fully reflected in the wording of the

         19  legislation. This can be fixed and, given the

         20  expertise and sophistication of the engineers

         21  volunteering on the Mechanical Committee of the

         22  Model Code Review, I am confident, will be.

         23                 This is important legislation and is

         24  some ways a work in progress.

         25                 The Model Code Committees are looking
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          2  at many of the issues we didn't have the time or the

          3  expertise to fully explore. REBNY will continue to

          4  work with the City Council and the Department of

          5  Buildings to ensure that we continue to have a safe

          6  and up-to-date Building Code.

          7

          8

          9  Written Testimony Of:

         10  Jonathan Humble, AIA Regional Director

         11

         12  23 February 2004

         13

         14  Mr. Gary Altman

         15  Legislative Council

         16  The City of New York

         17  Office of the Speaker

         18  City Hall

         19  New York, NY 10007

         20

         21  Re: Intro. # 126 - In relation to building safety

         22  24 January 2004 hearing before the Committee on

         23  Housing and Buildings

         24

         25                 Dear Mr. Altman:
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          2                 We are responding to the invitation

          3  to comment on Intro. # 126. The American Iron and

          4  Steel Institute (AISI) is an organization that

          5  represents the steel mills of Canada, Mexico and the

          6  United States. I am the Regional Director for the US

          7  Northeast and Atlantic Coast states. AISI would

          8  bring to your attention concerns and comments

          9  regarding the subject matter contained in the

         10  proposal that is before the Committee on Housing and

         11  Buildings.

         12                 Item #1.

         13                 Sections #4, #5, #12, and #24

         14  stipulate the requirement for "additional impact

         15  resistance."

         16                 Comment: While we applaud the

         17  developers of this document for not permitting the

         18  focus to be of such a narrow scope to prohibit

         19  unnecessarily any one specific construction, what

         20  remains of concern is the development of the rules

         21  when determining what constitutes "impact

         22  resistance." In this case, we would ask to what

         23  scale will be used to determine the appropriateness

         24  of what constitutes a safeguard to achieve "impact

         25  resistance." Such questions for determining scale
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          2  are:

          3                 - What hazards is the proposal

          4  attempting to address?

          5                 - Are there hazards that pose an

          6  acceptable risk versus those that do not?

          7                 - Is the proposed language to the

          8  Building code of the City of New York the

          9  appropriate place for these provisions, or are there

         10  alternate means that provide the same or greater

         11  level of protection?

         12                 - Should focus be on occupancies and

         13  constructions that are identified as high risk or

         14  should the changes apply equally to all occupancies

         15  and constructions?

         16                 - And, what is reasonable safety?

         17                 Item #2.

         18                 Section #18 states: "...(c) Open web

         19  steel joists...The commissioner shall amend RS 10-7

         20  to establish minimum acceptable fireproofing methods

         21  for open web steel joists and to redefine the

         22  limitations or restrictions on the buildings or

         23  occupancies in which the use of open web steel

         24  joists shall be permitted..."

         25                 Comment to Sections #18 and #25: It
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          2  remains unclear why open web steel joists are the

          3  only construction type that is being identified as a

          4  concern. The "joists" used in the World Trade Center

          5  (WTC) were a proprietary, hybrid, composite product

          6  developed and manufactured by Laclede Steel Company.

          7  Resistance welding, a method no longer utilized in

          8  the manufacture of open web steel joists, was used

          9  to manufacture the WTC members. Prohibiting the use

         10  of "open web steel joists" in high-rise construction

         11  will have a serious detrimental effect on the

         12  ability joist manufacturers to furnish steel joists

         13  not only on high-rise construction, but all other

         14  constructions as well. This negative wording has the

         15  potential to impact steel joist manufacturers in

         16  other jurisdictions and areas of construction. It is

         17  our understanding that the major concern of the New

         18  York City - Department of Buildings is the ability

         19  of certain types of fire resistant materials to

         20  perform as required, and we believe this is

         21  addressed, in part, in Section 7 of Intro 126.

         22  Therefore, we would question the technical

         23  substatitation of this proposal.

         24                 As we have for a number of decades,

         25  the American Iron and Steel Institute stands ready
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          2  to offer it knowledge and experience to the NYC-DOB

          3  to assist with respect to the subjects noted in this

          4  proposal. If there are any questions, please feel

          5  free to contact us.

          6                 Respectfully submitted, Jonathan

          7  Humble, AIA, Regional Director

          8

          9  Cc: H. Martin, American Iron and Steel Institute; C.

         10  Carter, American Institute of Steel Construction; G.

         11  Higbee, Steel Institute of New York; D. Murphy,

         12  Steel Joist Institute.

         13                 (Hearing concluded at 4:07 p.m.)
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          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter and Notary Public in and for the

         11  State of New York, do hereby certify that the

         12  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         13  within proceeding.

         14                 I further certify that I am not

         15  related to any of the parties to this action by

         16  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         17  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         18                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         19  set my hand this 24th day of February 2004.

         20
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                                   ---------------------

         25                          CINDY MILLELOT, CSR.
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          9            I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified Shorthand

         10  Reporter and a Notary Public in and for the State of

         11  New York, do hereby certify the aforesaid to be a

         12  true and accurate copy of the transcription of the

         13  audio tapes of this hearing.
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